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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Unit holders of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Anzen India Energy
Yield Plus Trust (“the InvIT"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity for the year then
ended, the Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Total
Returns at fair value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ('NDCFs") of the InvIT for
the year then ended, and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
notes (hereafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Reqgulations, 2014 as amended
including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (the "InvIT Regulations™), in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the InvIT as at March 31, 2024, its profit
including other comprehensive income, its cash movements and its movement of the unit
holders’ funds for the year ended March 31, 2024, its net assets at fair value as at March 31,
2024, its total returns at fair value and the net distributable cash flows of the InvIT for the
year ended March 31, 2024.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Qur
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the InvIT in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the InvIT Regulations, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 9(c)(i) which describes the classification of "Unit Capital" as
"Equity" instead of the applicable requirements of Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments:
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Presentation, in order to comply with the relevant InvIT Regulations. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying standalone financial statements.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and loans given to subsidiaries (as described in
Note 20 of the standalone financial statements)

The InvIT has significant investments | Our audit procedures included, among others, the
in subsidiaries and has granted loans | following:

to its subsidiaries amounting to INR | , poaq the policy, evaluated the design and tested
£ 7603, illien o Al Waren 1, the operating effectiveness of controls over
2024', The value of mvest.ments and assessment of impairment of investments in
s aggregate EEMpIIEE O71 af subsidiaries and loans to subsidiaries and the
total assets in the Balance Sheet. assumptions used by management.

The .subsid(;arie_s ‘?r.e i.n thte busir?es-s of |, Obtained and read the valuation report of the
R ANk Erialtite NI, freieraissitm InviT's independent valuation expert, and

issets a.nd. ha\ge eqtereg into ; assessed the expert’'s competence, capability
ransmission Services Agreemen and objectivity.

("TSA") with Long Term Transmission

Customers ("LTTC™). e Involved our subject matter experts to perform

an independent review of methodology,
estimates and key assumptions (weighted
average cost of capital, debt equity ratio,
forecast period, terminal growth rate) used in
the valuation by the Company's independent
valuation expert.

At each reporting period end,
management assesses the existence
of impairment indicators of
investments in subsidiaries and loans
given to subsidiaries. In case of
existence of impairment indicators,
the investment and loan balances are
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

subjected to impairment test, where
the fair value of the subsidiary is
compared with the value of
investments and loans given to such
subsidiaries.

The processes and methodologies for
assessing and determining the fair
value of the subsidiary is based on
complex assumptions, that by their
nature imply the use of
management's judgment, in particular
with reference to identification of
forecast of future cash flows relating
to the period covered by the
respective subsidiary's transmission
license, debt equity ratio, cost of
debt, cost of equity, residual value,
etc.

Considering the judgment involved in
determination of fair values due to
inherent uncertainty and complexity
of the assumptions used in
determination of fair values, this is
considered as a key audit matter.

Tested on sample basis that the tariff revenues
considered in the respective valuation models
are in agreement with TSAs / tariff orders and
evaluated the reasonableness of cost and
revenue attributes considered in forecast.

Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy and
validity of the data used in the calculations.

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures included
in the standalone financial statements.

Disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total

Returns at Fair Value as per InvIT regulations
(as described in Note 20 of the standalone financial statements)

The InvIT is required to disclose
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value
and Statement of Total Returns at
Fair Value pursuant to SEBI circulars
issued under the InviT regulations
which requires fair valuation of the
assets. Such fair valuation has been
carried out by the independent valuer
appointed by the InvIT.

For the purpose of the above, fair
value is determined by forecasting
and discounting future cash flows.

The processes and methodologies for
assessing and determining the fair

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

Read the requirements of InvIT regulations for

disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets
at Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at
Fair Value.

Read the policy, evaluated the design and tested
the operating effectiveness of controls over
assessment of fair value and the assumptions
used by management.

Read the policy, evaluated the design and tested
the operating effectiveness of controls over
preparation statement of Net Assets at Fair
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

value is based on complex
assumptions, that by their nature
imply the use of the management's
judgment, in particular with reference
to identification of forecast of future
cash flows relating to the period
covered by the respective
subsidiary's transmission license,
debt equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of
equity, residual value, etc.

Considering the judgment involved in
determination of fair values due to
inherent uncertainty and complexity
of the assumptions used in
determination of fair values, this is
considered as a key audit matter.

Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair
Value as per InvIT regulations and the
assumption used by management.

Obtained and read the valuation report of the
InvIT's independent valuation expert, and
assessed the expert's competence, capability
and objectivity.

Involved our subject matter experts to perform
an independent review of methodology,
estimates and key assumptions (weighted
average cost of capital, debt equity ratio,
forecast period, terminal growth rate) used in
the valuation by the Company's independent
valuation expert.

Tested on sample basis that the tariff revenues
considered in the respective valuation models
are in agreement with TSAs / tariff orders and
evaluated the reasonableness of cost and
revenue attributes considered in forecast.

Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy and
validity of the data used in the calculations.

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures included
in the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (the “Investment Manager") is
responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the

date of auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
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materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Management of the Investment Manager (‘the Management") is responsible for the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position as at March 31, 2024, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and the movement of the unit holders' funds for the year ended March 31,
2024, the net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, the total returns at fair value of the
InvIT and the net distributable cash flows of the InvIT for the year ended March 31, 2024 in
accordance with the requirements of the InvIT Regulations, the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate controls
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
ability of InvIT to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the InvIT or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management is also responsible for overseeing the InvIT's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the InvIT's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the InvIT's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the InvIT to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are in agreement with the
books of account;
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() In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined in Rule 2(1)(a)
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number: 408869
UDIN:24408R€IRKBTR (6584
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: May 24, 2024




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

Asat As at
Pvticuinrs o March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
{a) Financial assets
(i} Investments 3 11,386.41 11,386.41
(if) Loans 4 11,314.00 11,314.00
{iii) Other financial assets 5 075 0.75
(b) Income tax assats (net) 1.29 192
Total non-current assets 22,702.45 22,703.08
{2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i} Investments 3 451.35 472.84
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 471 4.10
(iif) Bank balances other than (7) above 8 155.00 176.24
(iv) Other financial assets 5 = 011
(b} Other current assets [ 0.53 -
Total current assets 611.69 653.29
Total assets 23,314.14 23,356.37
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
|a} Unit capital 9 15,624.79 15,624.79
(b) Other equity 10 225.26 272.87
Total equity 15,850.05 15.897.66 |
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
{1} Barrowings 11 7.441.81 7.416 24
Total non-current liabilities 7.441.81 7,416.24
(2) Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabllities
(i} Trade payables
{a) total outstanding dues of micro and smazll enterprises 12 - -
(b) total outstanding t_lues of creditors other than micro enterprises 12 4.93 23.86
and small enterporises
(ii} Other financial liabilities 13 1.67 167
(b} Other current liabilities 14 15,68 16.94
Total current liabilities 22.28 42.47
Total equity and liabilities 23,314.14 23,356.37
Summary of material accounting policies. 2

The accampanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 324882E/E300003

Membership Number : 408869
Place ; Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
(As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
A

== Lo

Vaibhav Dashi
Chief Financial Officer

Ranjita D;ﬂl
ClO & Whale-time Director
DIN No. : 09609160

>
Q=
lJalpa Pdrekh

Company Secretary
Membership Number : A44507

Place : Mumbal
Date : May 24, 2024




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

Year ended Year ended

Particulars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
INCOME

Revenue from operations 15 2,128.52 668.29
Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 11.64 13.49
Income from investment in mutual funds 21.46 24.33
Other income 413 -
Total income 2,165.75 706.11
EXPENSES

Finance costs 16 637.47 210.31
Legal and professional fees 4.79 111
Annual listing fee 2,08 2,62
Rating fea 2,61 2,66
Valuation expenses 0.85 0.90
Trustee fee 1.83 0.64
Audit fees

- Statutory audit fees (including limited review) 4,52 2.97
- Other services (including certification) 0.24 0.15
Other expenses 17 0.23 0,91
Total expenses 654.62 222.27
Profit before tax 1,511.13 483.84
Tax expense:

(i) Current tax 18 15.13 15.05
(i) Deferred tax - -
(iii} Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 18 (0.05) -
Profit for the year [A] 1,496.05 468.79
Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods " =
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods = =
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [B] - -
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [A+B] 1,496.05 468.79
Earnings per unit (Rs. per unit)

Basic and diluted 19 9.47 7.68
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited

Firm Registration No: 324982E/E300003 {As Investment Manager ta Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
s

per Amit !:g:/ Ranjita Deo Vaibhav Doshi

Partner ClO & Whole-time Director Chief Financial Officer

Membership Number : 408869 DIN No. : 09609160
Place : Mumbai
2o

Date : May 24, 2024 %’%’:,,_

Jalpa Parekh
Company Secretary
Membership Number : A44507

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2024




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

. Year ended Year ended
el March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,511.13 483.84
Adjustments to reconcile profit/{loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Interest income on investment in fixed deposits (11.64) (13.48)
Iricome from investment in mutual funds (21.48) (24.33)
Interest income on income tax refund (0.08) .
Finance costs 637.47 21031
Interest income on loans given to subsidiaries (1,810.24) {556.74)
Interest income on non-convertible debentures {46.58) {20.65)
Interest income on optionally-canvertible debentures (271.72) (90.90)
Operating loss before working capital changes (13.10) {11.96)
Working capital adjustment
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets (0.63) (0.75)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (18.93) 23.86
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities (1.26) 16.93
Cash flow generatad from operations (33.92) 28.08
Income tax (paid) / refund received (net) (14.37) {16.97)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities [A] [48.29) 1111
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of OCD of subsidiaries = (2,840.00)
Purchase of NCD of subsidiary - (291.00)
Loan given to subsidiaries - {11,940.00)
Loan repaid by subsidiaries = 626.00
Praceeds frorm maturity of fixed deposits 42.94 B,752.17
Investment in fixed deposits (21.70) (8,928.41)
Investment in mutual funds (1,724.40) (6,318.56)
Proceeds from sale of investment in mutual funds 1,767.35 5,870.05
Interest received on loan given to subsidiaries 1,810.24 556.74
Interest received on Optianally convertible debentures 27172 135,49
Interest received on Non convertible debentures 46.56 20.65
Interest received on investment in fixed deposits 1175 13.38
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities [B] 2,204.46 (14,343.49),
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Unit capital® - 7,500.00
Proceeds from non convertible debentures . 7,500.00
Payment of Unit Issue expenses - (175.21)
Payment of Interest an non convertible debentures (611.90) (292.38)
Payment of distributions to unitholders (1,543.66) (195.92)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities [C] {2,155.56) 14,336.48
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C] 0.61 4.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 410 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,71 4.10

*The Trust has issued its units amounting to Rs. 8,300 million in exchange of the equity shares of NRSS and DMTCL. The same has not been reflected in

cash flow since it was a non-cash transaction,

Total cash and cash equivalents

Components of cash and cash equivalents: Yeorended Yerwml
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks :
- On current accounts 471 4.10
- Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months - -
4,71 4.10




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

Reconcillation b

1 opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities (including current maturities)

ol Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening total borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) 7,417.51 -
Cash flow
- Interest paid (611.90) (292.39)
- Proceeds/|repayments) v 7,500.00
Interest accrued 611.90 294.06
Others [ancillary borrowing cost) 25.57 (83.786)
Closing total borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) 7,443.48 7,417.91

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 324982E/E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number : 408869
Place : Mumbai

Date ; May 24, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
(As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)

!
+

Ranjita Deo
Cl0 & Whole-time Director
DIN No. : 09609160

N

Jalpa Parékh
Company Secretary
Membership Number : A44507

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2024

uos

Vaibhav Doshi

Chief Financial Officer




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Standalone Statement of Changes in Unit holders' Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

A. Unit capital
Particulars Number of units Amount
As at April 01, 2022 = -
Units issued during the year (refer note 9(a)) 158.00 15,800.00
|ssue expenses{refer note 9{b}) {175.21)
As at March 31, 2023 158.00 15,624.79
Units issued during the year (refer note 9(a)) - -
As at March 31, 2024 158.00 15,624.79
B. Other equity
Particulars Retained earnings Total
As at April 01, 2022 - =
Profit for the year 468,79 468.79
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Distribution during the year (refer note below) {195.92) (195.92)
As at March 31, 2023 272.87 272.87
Profit for the year 1,496,05 1,496.05
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Distribution during the year (refer note below) (1,543.66) (1,543.66)
As at March 31, 2024 225,26 225.26

Note:

The distribution during the year does not include the distribution relating to last quarter of FY 2023-24 which will be paid after March 31, 2024.

The distributions made by Anzen to its unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) of Anzen under the InvIT Regulations and

hence part of the same includes repayment of capital as well.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date
ForSRBCE&COLLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 324982E/E300003

For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors of
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
(As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)

A
w2
Vaibhav Dashi
Chief Financial Officer
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"ﬁanji‘lzﬁea

ClO & Whole-time Director
DIN No. : 09609160

Q2=

JalpalFare‘kh
Company Secretary
Membership Number : Ad4507

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number : 408869
Place : Mumbai

Date : May 24, 2024

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2024




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars

(SEBI MASTER CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 DATED 06 JULY 2023 issued under the InviT Regulations)

A,

-

[

Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2024 (refer note 2 below)

(Rs. in Millian)

Patictilis March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value

A. Assets 23,314,14 24,201.85 23,356.37 24,211.48
8. Liabilities (at book value) 7,464.09 7,464.09 7,458.71 7.458.71
€. Net Asset Value (A-B) 15,850.05 16,737.76 15,897.66 16,752.77
0. Number of units 158.00 158.00 158.00 158.00
E, NAV (C/D) 100.32 105.94 100.62 106.03
Notes:

. Project wise break up of Fair value of Assets as at March 31, 2024

{Rs. In Million)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Darbhanga - Motiharl Transmission Company Limited ("DMTCL"# 13,494.55 13,849.80
NRSS XXX| {B) Transmission Limited ("NRSS"}# 10,155.85 10,337.42
Sub total 23,650.40 24,187.22
InviT Assets 611.06 £653.18
Payable to EIYP* (58.61) (628.92)
Tatal Assets 24,201.85 24,211.48

# The Trust has acquired DMTCL and NRSS with effect from November 11, 2022.
*Pursuant to Securities Purchase Agreement, the entire economic and beneficial interest in all amounts due (net of tax) to the 5PVs as per the CERC Order
pertalning to period prior to and including March 31, 2022 (including any amounts received as one-time settlements for issues raised In the petition) is vested with
Edelwelss Infrastructure Yield Plus(EIYP) and upon receipt of the amounts (or any part thereof) shall be transferred to EIYP by SPVs. Accordingly, the same has not

been considered in fair value of Assets,

Fair values of total assets {including project wise break up for DMTCL and NRSS of fair value of total assets) as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 as disclosed
above are based solely on the fair valuation report May 20, 2024 dated and May 23, 2023 respectively of the independent valuer appointed by the Investment

manager under the InviT Regulations.

Statement of Total Return at Fair Value (refer note 1 below)

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total Comprehensive Income {As per the Statement of Profit and Loss) 1,496.05 468.79
Add/(less): Other Changes in Fair Value not recognized in Total Comprehensive 32.60 855.11
Total Return 1,528.65 1,323.90
Notes:

based on fair valuation report of the independent valuer appointed by the Investment manager under the InviT Regulations.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC& CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 324982E/E300003

. Sensitivity analysis with respect to significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurment has been disclosed in Note 22.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
(As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)

. Fair value of assets as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023 and other changes in fair value for the year then ended as disclosed in the above tables are
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Place : Mumbal

Date : May 24, 2024 el
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Membership Number : A44507
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Anzen India Energy Yeld Plus Trust
Notes to dalone Financlal
Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars

for the year ended March 31, 2024

{SEBI MASTER CIRCULAR NO, SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 DATED 06 JULY 2023 issued under the InvIT Regulatians)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 4.6 OF CHAPTER 4 TO THE SEBI CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HD/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR{2023/115

Stat of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

(Rs In Million)

Year ended Year ended
Description March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inflow from Project SPV Distrihutions
Cash flaws recolved from 5P in the form of interest [ accrued interast / additional interest 2,128.52 71287
Add: Cazh flows raceived from 5PV In the farm of dividend x =
Add: Cath flaws fram the SPYs towards the repayment of the debit provided to tha SPVs by the Anzen Trust; - 626.00
and/ or mdemiption ol debenturas Issued by SPVs ta the Anzen Trust
add: Cash flaws from the 5P through capltal reduction by way of a buy back or any other means as - =
purmitted, subject to applicable law
Inflow from Investments [ Assets . =
Add: Cash Rows from sale of equity shares or any other investments In SPVs adjusted for amounts -
i iarpl | to be rel !

Add: Cash fiows from the sale of the 5PVs not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to reinvest, or if such| - -
pracends are not intended to be invested subsequently
Inflow from Liabilities . =
Add: Cazh flows from addittonnl borrewings fincluding debentures / ather securities), fresh issuance af - 15,000.00
uriits, ete
Other Inflaws . v
Add: Any ather ineame accrulng at the Anzen Trust and not captured above, 35 deemed necessary by the 40.08 3509
Irjvestmint Managar, including but not limised to interast / return on surplus cash invasted by the Anzen)
Trust
Total cash Inflow at the Anzen Trust level [A) 2,158.60 16,373.956
Dutflow far Anzen Trust Enpenses [ Taxes
Less; Any payment of fees, interest and expenses incurred at the Anzen Trust, including but not limited to (B06.77) |438.76)
the feas of the | trment i per, Project M, , Trustae, Auditor, Valuer, Credit Rating Agency, @1,
Lesst Ineeme tax (i appllcable) for standalone Anzen Trust and / ar payment af ather statutory dues {15.08) {15,05)
Outtlow for Liabilities
Less: Repayment of third-party debt |principal) { redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc., net of = -
any debit ralsed by refinanclimg of awisting debr
Lesst Net cash sot aside 1o comply with k BT such a5 DSRA, cash et - (155.00)
QOutflow for Assets
Less: Amaunt invested Inany of the 5PVs - (15,071.00)
Less; Amounts set aside to be invested ar pl i 1o b o, as deamed necessary by the Investment - #
Manager In comphance with the InviT Regulitions
Less; Investments including acquisition of athar 5FVs - =
Other Outflows
Less; Any provision of reserve deemed necassary by the Inv fer which may be (22.28) (102.47)
due in future
Add [ Lets: Amounts added/ retained in necardance with the transaction decuments ar the loan - -
agre=maents in relation io the Anzon Trust
Less; Any ather expense of the Anzen Trust not captured herein 35 deamed necessary by the Investment - -
Manager
Add [ Less: Any other adjustmant 1o be undertaken by the Board to ensure that thora is na double counting .
af the same item for the aboue calculations
Tatal cash outflow/retention at the Anzen Trust [evel (B) (644.13) (15,782.28)
Net Distributablo Cash Flows (C] = (A+8] 1,524.47 591.68

INR 1,543.66 million distribution has baen paid during the year ended March 31, 2024 (FY 2022-23: INR 195,92 million)
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a)

b)

Trust information
Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust (“the Trust” or “Anzen”) is an Irrevocable trust settled by Sekura Energy Private Limited (the "Sponsor”) on November 01, 2021 pursuant to the Trust

Deed under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and registered with Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI") under the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 as
an Infrastructure Investment Trust on January 18, 2022 having registration number IN/InviT/21-22/0020. The Trustee of Anzen is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the "Trustee”). The
Investment manager for Anzen is Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (the “Investment Manager” or the “"Management”). The objectives of Anzen are to undertake activities as an
infrastructure investment trust in accordance with the provisions of the InvT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of Anzen s to own and invest in power transmission
assets and ranawable energy assets in India with the objective of producing stable and sustainable distributions to unitholders.

As at March 31, 2024, Anzen has following project entities (“Special Purpose Vehicles” or “SPVs") which are transmission infrastructure projects developed on Build, Own, Operate and
Maintain ('BOOM') basis:

1. Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL'}

2. NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS')

The address of the registered office of the Investment Manager is Flot 294/3, Edelweiss House, off CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz - East. Mumbai 400098. Maharashtra. India.

The financial statements were approved for Issue in accordance with resolution of Board of Directors of the Investment Manager on May 24, 2024.

Material Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements (the “financial statements”) are the separate financial statements of the Trust and comprise of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flow, Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity for the year then ended, the Statement of
Net Assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, the Statament of Total Returns at fair value and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (‘NDCFs') for the year then ended and a
summary of materlal accounting policies and other explanatory notes in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ["Ind AS") read with SEBI (Infrastructure | Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended
and Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PaD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated 06 July 2023 issued thereunder ("InvIT Regulations”).

The financial statements are presanted in Indian Rupees Million, except when otherwise indicated.

These Financial Stataments have heen prepared on a historical cost basis and on an accrual basis except for certain assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, except classification of unit capital which Is made in accordance with the nviT
Regulations as more fully described in Note 3(c)(i) to the financial statements.

Summary of material accounting policies
The following is the summary of material accounting policies applied by the Trust in preparing its financial statements:

Current versus non-current classification

The Trust presents assats and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when itis:
* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

« Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability Is current when:

* It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

® It Is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» |t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Thera is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of tha llabllity that could, at the option of Lhe counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity Instruments do not affect its classification.
The Trust classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Trust has identified twelve months as its operating

cycle.

Fair value measurement

The Trust measures financial instruments such as mutual funds at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
lfability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

-In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Trust.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is ed using the ptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest,

A falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability ta generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Trust uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observahle
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categarised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant ta the Fair value measurement as a whale:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable;

Level 3 -Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial stataments on a recurring basis, the Trust determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting peried.
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L]

d)

e}

For the purpase of fair value disclnsures, the Trust has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy lor falr value. Other fafr value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

« Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 22)

« Investment in quoted mutual fund (note 3)

» Financial Instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 21)

= Disclosures of statement of Net Assets at fair value and statement of Total returns at fair value

Revenue
The specific recognition criteria described below must be met before revenues s recognlsed

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income s recorded using the effectlve interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the astimated future cash
payments or recaipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost uf

a financial llability When calculating the effective interast rate, the Trust estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial inst |for P
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expectad credit losses.

Dividends
Income from dividend on Investments is accrued in the year In which it is declared, whereby the Trust's right to receive payment is established.

Tanes

Current income tak

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recoversd from or pald to the tax authorities, The tax rates and tax |aws used (o compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recog outside st; of profit or loss s r ised outside af profit ar joss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity),
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly In equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject (o interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriatz,

The net amaunt of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Impairment of non current financial assets

The Trust assesses, at each reporting date, whether there Is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, ar when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Trust esti the asset's recc bl An asset’s rec bl Ts the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and Its value in
use, Recoverable amount Is determined for an Individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds [ts the asset is considered impaired and Is written down ta its recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted ta their present value using a pre-tax discaunt rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
maney and the risks specific to the asset. In detarmining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into If no such ions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model Is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quated share prices for publicly traded panies or ather available fair value indi s,

The Trust bases its impairment calculations on detziled budget and forecast calculations. These budgets are prepared for the antire project life.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised In the statement of profit and lass.

An assessment s made at each reporting date to determine whether there Is an indication that pr ly recognised impai Iosses no longer exist or have decreased. If such Indication
exfsts, the Trust estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previausly recognised fmpairment loss s reversed only If there has been a change in the assumptions used to
d ine the asset's rec bl since the last impai loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable

amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been detarminad, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset |s carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal [s treated as a revaluation increase.

The Trust assesses where dimate risks could have a significant impact, such as the Introdliction of emission-reduction legislation that may Increase costs. These risks in relatien to dimate-
related matters are Included as key assumptions where they materially impact the measure of recoverable amount, these assumptions have been included In the cash-llow forecasts in

Provisions, contingent [fabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present cbligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resaurces embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation.

When the Trust expects some or all of a provision to be reimb i, for ple, under an e contract, the is rec {asa asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The |ating to a provision is pr iin the of profit or loss net of any reimbursement

If the effect of the time valus of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting

is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is-
[a) & possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mere uncertain future events not whally within
the control of the Trust or
[b] a present obligatian that arises from past events but [s not recognized because
- itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying ic benefits will be required to settle the obligation ar
- the amaunt of the obligation cannot be d with sufficlent relizbility.
The Trust dees not recognize a cantingent liability but discloses the same as per the requirements of Ind AS 37,

Cantingent assats are not rec i In the financial
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nvestmants [n subsidlaries
The Trust ascounts for Its investmeants in subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairmant losses {If any) in its separate financial statamants. Investments accountad for at cost which are held

for sale are accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105, Mon-current Assets Held for Sale and as held for sale.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial |iability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial ition and

All financial assets are recognised Initially at fair value glus, In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transactian costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or ion in the market place (regular

way trades] are recognised on the trade date, Le,, the date that the Trust commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depands on the financlal assat's contractual cash flow charactaristics and the Trust's business madel for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Trust has applied the practical expedient, the Trust inltially measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

For purpases of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i, Debt instrumants at amortised cast

i, Dabt instruments at fair valua through other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH)

ll. Debt instruments, derivativas and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL)
v, Equity Instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at amortised cost [debt instruments)

A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for eollecting contractual cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates ta cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interast (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is most relevant to the Trust. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subseq | d at ised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the statement of profit or |oss. The losses arising fram impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest raceivable and laans

given o subsidiaries (Refer Nate 4).

Financial assets at fair value through OC| [FYTOC!) (debt Instrumants)

A 'financial asset' is classified as the FVTOC! If both of the fallowing criteriz are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC categary are measurad Initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized In the other camprehensive
income (OCI), However, the Trust recognizes interest Income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss In the statement of prafit or loss. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain er lass previously recognised in OCI Is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss. Interest earned whilst halding FVTOCI debt instrument Is reported as
interest Income using the EIR methad The Trust does not have financial assets which are subsequantly measured at FVTOCL

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity i
Upan Tnitial recognition, the Trust can elect to classify Irrevacably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value threugh OC when they meet the definition of equity
under Ind AS 32 Financial [mtrurntnts Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held
for trading and gent e ‘ gnised by an acquirer in a business combination ta which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FYTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assats are never recycled to profit or loss, Dividends zre recognised as othar Income n the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has
been established, except when the benefits from such proceeds as a recavery of part of the cost of the financial asser, in which case, such gains are recarded in OCI, Equity Instruments
designated at falr value through OC are not subject to Impalrment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FVTPI s a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisatian as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, Is classified as at FVTPL.
In-additian, the Trust may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOC criteria, asat FVTPL, However, such election is allowed anly If doing so

reduces o eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsi y [referred to as ‘acc i '), The Trust has not desig: | any debt i asat FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FUTPL category are measured at fair value with all ct ised in the of profit or |oss.
Derccognition

A financial asset (or, where applicatle, a part of a financial asset or part of @ group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed fram the Trust's balance sheet) when:

= The rights to receiva cash flows from the asset have expirad, or

« The Trust has transferred [ts rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“mass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Trust has neither transferred nor retained substantlally all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates If and to what cxtent it has retained the risks and
rewards af ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Trust continues te
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Trust’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Trust also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and chligations that the Trust has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

Majarity of the financial assets of the Trust which are not refiected at fair value pertaln to loans 1o jes and ather receivables, Considering the nature of business, the Trust does not
faresee any credit risk on its loans and ather receivables which may cause an Impairment. Majority of the other recelvable pertain to recgivable from subsidiary companies only. Also, the
Trust does not have any histary of impairment of other receivables,

For the financial assets which are reflected at fir value, no further impalrment allowance is necessary as they reflect the fair value of the relevant financial asset itself,
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Financial fiabilities

|nitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an eff hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fafr value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Trust's financial llabllities |nclude barrawings and related costs, trade and other payables, and deri financial Inst

Subsequant measurament

Fot purposes of subseguent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categaries:
= Financial |iabllities at fair value through profit or loss

« Financial llabllities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabifities at fair value thraugh profit or loss Include financial liabllities held for trading and financial liabllities designated upan Initial recognition as at falr value thraugh profit ar
|oss. Financial liabifities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial Instrumeants
entered into by the Trust that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind A5 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading un|ess they ara designated as effective hedging Instruments.

Galns or lasses an liabilities held for trading are recagnised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon Initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only If the critera in Ind AS 109 ars

'

satisfied. For liabillties designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recagnized In OCIL. These galns/! are not | Iy transferred to
PBL. However, the Trust may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such lfability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and horrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Trust. After Initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subseq Iy { at amortised cost using tha EIR method. Galns and
|osses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortisad cost s calculated by taking inta account any discount or pramium on acquisition and fees or costs that ara an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amartisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more Information refer Note 11.

Derecognition

A financhal liabllity is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing financlal liabllity is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, ar the terms af an existing llability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as the derecagnition of the ariginal liability
and the recognition of a new lizbility. The difference in the respactive carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Reclassification of financial assets

The Trust determines classification of financial assets and liabillties an initial recognition. After initial recognition, na reclassification is made far firancial assets which are equity instrumants

and financial liabilities, For financial assets which are dabt instruments, a reclassification {s made only if there is a change in the business mode| for managing thase assets, Changes to the

business model are expected ta be infrequent, The Trust's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant ta

the Trust's operations. Such changes are evident to external partles. A change In the business model occurs when the Trust either begins or ceases ta perform an activity that is significant to

ts operations, If the Trust reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospertively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
lowing the change in busi muodel, The Trust does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (Including impalrment gains or losses) orinterest.

The fallowing table shows various reclassification and haw they are accounted far:

% Revisad x

Original classification R Accounting treatment

i et FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference botween previous amortized cost and fair
value Is recognised In profit or loss

FUTRL — T Falr value at re:[ass!ﬁuunn date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR (s calculated based en
the new gross carrying amount.

Amicrticad coit FvTac Fair valueis rnelasgrud at reclassification date, Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is in OCl. No change In EIR due to reclassification.
Fair value at raclassification date bacomes ils new amortised cast carrying amount. However,

FvToCH Amortised cost c Jative gain or loss In OCI is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset s measured as
if it had always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL RTod Fair \:ﬂil.:& at reclassification date becomes its new carrying No other ad] Is

= . | b <O m ree] s

FvTOCH FVTPL Assets continue to he measurad at falr value, C gain ar loss o recagnizad in QCI

reclassified fram equity to profit or luss the reclassification dats.

Offsetting of financial Instruments
Financlal assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported In the balance sheet if there [s a currently enforeeable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there

is an Intentian to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanegusly.

i} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equlvalent In the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shart-term depasits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject ta an

inslgnificant risk of changes In value.
For the purpese of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term depasits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are

considered an integral part of the Trust's cash management.
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Cash distribution to unit holders
The Trust recognises & liability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distribution is authorised, and 2 legal abligation has been created. As per the InviT Regulstians, a
distributien is authorised when it is appraved by the Board of Directors of the Ir 1t ger. Ac ding amaunt is recognised directly in equity.

Earnings per unijt
Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net profit ar loss attributable to unit holders of the Trust (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes It any) by the

weighted average number of units outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of units outstanding during the period is adjusted for avents such as bonus issue, bonus
element in a rights lssue, split, and reverse split (cansalidation of units) that have changed the number of units outstanding, without 2 ¢ ponding change in

Recent accounting pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified C ies (indian Acc i js) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for

annual periods beginning on ar after April 1, 2023, The Trust applied for the first-time these amendments.

13 finitian of i i -A d toind AS B

The clarify the distinction t in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been darified how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop ace ing weti The j had no Impact on the Trust's standalone financial

fi. Disclosure of Atc ing Policles - | toind AS1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their *significant’ accounting policies
with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting palicy
disclasures, The amendments have had an impact on the Trust's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items n the Trust’s

financial statements.

ji.  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to ind AS 12
The amendments narrow the scopa of the initial racognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applics to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary

differences such as leases. The amendments had na impact on the Trust's dalone financlal

Apart fram these, consegquential amendments and ed torials have been made to ather ind AS like ind AS 101, ind A5 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind A5 109, Ind AS 115 and |nd AS 34.
For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Trust,

[This space is intentionally teft blank]
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3 Investments
Non-Current
Asat Asat

Paeticeilars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
() Equity i at cost (ung d)
Darbhanga - Motihar Transmission Campany Limited (16,296,661 equity shares of As. 10 each fully paid up) 5,453.00 5,453.00
(refar note cand nate d}
NRSS XXX1 (8] Transmission Limited (9,832,137 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up) (refer note c and notz d) 4,132.87 4,132.87
[b) Nen-convertible dek {ung i) (at | cost)
Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited (291,000 of 16% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000 each 291.00 29100
fully paid up) {refer note a)
(<} Optionally convertible deb es | ) (at amaortised cost)
D ga - Motihari Ci y Limited (87,710,000 of 18% Optionally bl L of Rs. 10 B877.10 877.10
each fully paid up) {refer nate band ¢)
NRSS XXX| (B) Transmission Limited (63,243,500 of 183 Optionally ¢ ible dat s of Rs, 10 each fully pald 632,44 632.44
up) {refer note b and c)

11,386.41 11,386.41

Non-Convertible debenture (NCD) of Face value of As. 1,000 each were lssued by DMTEL The NCO ara redeemabla at the optian of the NCD holder anytime out of cash surplus of
the borrower , but if the NCD helders do not ise their right of redeeming the NCDs, tha same are due for repayment at the end of March 2030
The Trust does not [ntend to early redeem the NCD In next 12 months from Balance Sheet date, Accordingly, Investment fn NCD fs disclosed as non-current

(b) Optionally convertible debentures (OCD) of Face value of Rs, 10 each were issued by DMTCL and NRSS.
The: OCD Holders, subject to necessary approvals as needed and any shareholding restrictions under the T5A to which the Borrower is a party, have the option to convert the 0CD
at any time before the Final Redemption Date subject to the terms of the Ag and valuation report and applicable law.,
The OCD are redeamable at the option of the OCD holder anytime out of cash surplus of the barrower.
The Trust does not intend to early redeem the OCD in next 12 months from Balance Sheat date. gly, I in OCO Is disclosed as non-current.
{e} Uder Ind AS, for these optionally convertible deb the difference between transaction cost and falr value calculated by present value of all future cash receipts discounted
using the prevalling imarket rule of inlerest has been reclassified as Investment In equity of the subsidlary,
(d) The Trust has acquirad the entire equity share capital of Barbhanga - {hari lssion Company Limited ('DMICL') and NRSS X008 Transmission Umited ('NRSS') from
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus (EIYPY) g to share purchase ag! dated on 01, 2022 and subseq closing on N ber 11, 2022, The Trust issued
its units armounting to Rs. 4,700 million and Rs. 3,600 millian to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NASS respectively.
Details of the subsidiaries ars as fall
Name of subsidiary Country of inc i Owne Interesta
As ot March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
y held by the Trust;
Darbhanga - Tr C Limited Ind|a 1005 100%
NRSS 0t¢! (B) Transmission Limited Indla 100% 100%)
Cufrent
Particulars sy Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I at fair value through prafit or loss
Investment in mutual funds
ABSL Liquid Fund-Growth-Direct Plan - 576,290.52 units (March 31, 2023 : 900,428.31 22457 326.93
units)
ABSL Overnight Fund-Grawth-Direct Plan - Nil (March 31, 2023 : 10,879.30 uniits) - 13.19
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund-Direct Plan-Growth - 634,528.90 units (March 31,2023 : 226.78 mmn
398,332.91 units)
Tatal 45135 472.84
Aggregate value of quoted investments 45135 472.84
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 11,386.41 11,386.41
4 Loans
Man - Current
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,
{Unsecured, considered good)
anan to subsidlaries [refer note 23)* 11.314,00 11.314,00
]Tﬂhl 11,314.00 11,314.00
Rate of interast Secured/ unsecured Asat Asat
Detalls of loan ta subsidiaries March 31, 2026 March 31, 2023
Darkhanga - Motihari Tr Company Limited 16% Unsecurad 6,582.50 6,582.50
NRS5 Xxl (8] sion Limited 16% Unsecured 473150 4,731.50

*Laans are non-derivative financial assets which are repayable by subsidiaries any time at its discretion or subject to mutual agreement between the parties, Further, the subsidiaries can prepay all or
any portion of the outstanding principal term loan {along with accrued Interest) without any pre payment penalty at such terms as may be agreed between the borrower and Trust,
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5 Other financlal assets

Partlculars

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asar
March 31, 2023

Nan - Current
{Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

Tatal
pa
Current

(Unsacured, considerad good)
Interest acerued on fixed

011

Total

Other assets
Current

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

[Unsacured, considered good)
Prepald expenses

063

Tatal

0.63

~

Cash and cash equi

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current accounts

471

4.10

|Total

471

a.10

Balnnees with bank on current account dars not eamn interest.

8 Bank bal ather than disclosed in note 7 above

Particulars

Asat
March 31,2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

QOther bank balances

Depasits with griginal maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months

Balances with bank held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees and
othar *

2124
155,00

iotal

i76.24

=*Fixed deposits with banks of Rs. 155.00 million as at March 31, 2024 and interest accrued thereon of Rs. Nil are lien marked with Catalyst

Trusteeship Limited (debenture trustes),

Shart-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, dep

trust, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates,

ing on the |

[This space is intentianally left blank]
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9 Unit capital
Reconciliation of units ding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of units in million A No, of units in million Amount

At the beginning of the year 158.00 15,624.79 - -
Add : Issued during the year - . 158.00 15,800.00
Less: Issue expenses (rafer note (b) below) = = = {175,21)
= ling at the end of the year 158,00 15,624.79 158.00 15,624.79
Note:

(a) Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has made an initial Tssue of 75,000,000 units, for cash at a price of Rs 100.00 per unit, aggregating to Rs. 7500 Million to the eligible
unitholders (as defined in the Final Placement Memorandum) (the "lssue”) on private placement basis, In accordance with the Securitles and Exchange Board of India
{Infrastructure | 1t Trust) Regulati 2014 including the circulars and guidelines issued thersunder. The issue opened on November 10, 2022 and closed on November
11,2022. Additionally, pursuant ta the share purchase agreament with Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Trust (“EIYP"), EIYP was allotted 83,000,000 units of Anzen.

The InviT Committee of Edelweiss Real Assets N gers Limited (Investment M, of Anzen), considered and approved allotment of 1,58,000,000 units to the eligible
unitholders of Anzen on November 11, 2022,

5 capital In accord with Ind AS 32 Financial

(b) Issue expenses of Rs. 175.21 Million incurred in connection with issue of units have been reduced from the Unith
Instruments: Presentation.

(c) Terms/Rights attached to the Units
(i) The Trust has only one class of Units. Each Unit reprasents an undivided beneficial Interest in the Trust. Each holder of Unit is entitled to one vote per unit. The Unitholders have
the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in every financial year in accordance with the InviT Regulations. The Board of
Directors of the A ger app distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Units held by the Unitholders. The Trust declares and pays
jons in Indian Rup

Stk

Under the provisions of the InviT Regulations, the Trust is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust for each
financial year. Accordingly, Unit Capital contains a cantractual obligation to pay cash 1o the Unitholders. Thus, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 32 - Financial
Instruments: Presentation, the Unit Capital contains a liability element which should have been classified and treated accordingly. However, the SEBI Circulars (SEBI/HO/DDHS-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated luly 06, 2023 issued under the InviT Regulations, and Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI Circular dated luly 06, 2023 dealing with the minimum
presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements, require the Unit Capital in entirety to be presented/classified as “Equity”, which is at variance from the
requirements of Ind AS 32, In arder to comply with the aforesaid SEBI requirements, the Trust has presented unit capital as equity in these financial statements. Consistent with
Unit Capital being ciassified as equity, any distributions to Unitholders are also being presented in the Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity when the distributions are
approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager,

(it} A Unithalder has no equitable or proprietary interest in the projects of the Trust and is not entitled to any share in the transfer of the projects (or any part thereof) ar any interest
in the projects {or any part thereof) of the Trust. A Unitholder's right is limited to the right to require due administratian of the Trust in accardance with the provisions of the

Trust Deed and the | 1t Manag: t Ag
{d) Details of Unithalders holding more than 5% units in the Trust
< As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
No. of units in million % holding No, of units in million % holding
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 88.40 55.95% 93.80 59.37%
Sekura Energy Privale Limited 23.80 15.06% 2380 15.U6%
Larsen & Toubro Limited 15.40 9.75% 1520 9.62%
127.50 80.76%] 132.80 84.05%

The Trust has ac'qulmi the entire equity share capital of Darbhanga - Matihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI{B] Transmission Limited ('NRSS') from
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus ('EIYP') pursuant to share purchase agr dated on N ber 01, 2022 and sub t closing on N ber 11, 2022. The Trust issued
its units amounting to Rs. 4,700 million and Rs. 3,600 million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and MRSS respectively,

{e) The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of incorparation till the balance sheet date,

10 Other equity
Asat As at
1

Pakfe i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
|Retained eamings

Balance as at the beginning of the year 27287 -
Profit for the year 1,496.05 468.79
Less: Distribution to Unlt Hold [1,543.66) [195.92
Closing balance 225,26 272,87

Retalned earnings are the profits earned by the Trust till date, less distribution paid to unitholders, if any.

[This space s intentionally left blank]
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11 Borrowings
Non - current:

|Particulars

Effective Interest
Rate

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Borrowings at amortised cost

A, Secured

B.01% Series A Non convertible debentures

(4,500 debentures of Rs.1,000,000 each fully paid up) **
8.34% Series B Non convertible debentures

(3,000 debentures of Rs.1,000,000 each fully paid up) **
Less: current maturities of debentures

B.ATH

4,467.52

2,974.29

4,450.33

2,965.91

Total non-current borrowings

7,441.81

7,416.24

**Net of ancillary borrowing costs amounting to Rs. 58.19 million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 83.76 million) for Series A and Series B.

Non-current borrowings
Current borrowings

(a) Terms of borrowings

7,441.81

7,416.24

On December D1, 2022 the Trust has issued and allotted 7,500 secured, rated, listed, redeemahle, non-convertible debentures of face value of Rs
1,000,000 each for an aggregate consideration of Rs.7,500 million on private placement basis.

Repayment schedule of NCD

yeRtiRL e Amount Maturity date

Series A 4,500.00 01-12-325

Series B 3,000.00 01-12-27
(b} Security

(

a first pari passu charge by way of hypaothecation on all the Issuer's current assets and other assets (excluding DSR and DSRA), both present and future,

Including: (i) all the receivables, right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Issuer in, to and under all the loans and advances
extended by the lssuer to the SPVs and HoldCa(s), present and future {collectively, the “Issuer Loans”); (ii} the receivables, right, title and interest and
benefits of the Issuer in, to and under all the financing agreements, deeds, documents and agreements or any other instruments (both present and
future) which are now executed or may hereafter be executed by the Issuer with respect to the Issuer Loans; Step in rights on the Loans shall be with
the Common security Trustee. (iii) all bank accounts of the |ssuer, including but not limited to the Escrow Account and the Sub-Accounts (including Cash
Trap Sub Account) (if any) (excluding the distribution account and the accounts opened to meet the debt service reserve requirements in respect of any
Additional Debt) or any accounts in substitution thereof that may be opened in accordance with the Debt Securities Documents, and in all funds from
time to time deposited therein (including the reserves), all designated account opened with designated banks and the Permitted Investments or other

securities representing all amounts credited to the Escrow Account;

(1) = first and exclusive charge on the DSR and DSRA to be created in favour of the Common Security Trustee for benefit of Debt Securities under this Deed,

and all amounts lying therein;

(iif) a first pari passu pledge over 100% {one hundred percent} of the equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally convertible
debentures, non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer in all the Project SPVs.

{iv) pari passu pledge over unencumbered equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally convertible debentures, nen-convertible
debentures and securities held by the Issuer and Haldcol{s) in all the Other SPVs and Holdco(s) (as applicable).

(c) Interest

Interest shall accrue at the end of every quarter and shall be payable on the last date of each quarter,

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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12 Trade

bles [carried at amortised cost]

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditars other than micra enterprises and small enterprises

493

Tatal

23.86

Trade payahles
- to related parties
- to others

4.93

18.90
3.96

Total

4.93

23.86

Trade

Particulars

o

ds from the date of transaction

Less than 1 year

2-3 years

More than
3 years

Total

As at March 31, 2024

Total nuu_tunﬂ[ng dues of micro and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed duss of micro and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

4.83

Total

4.93

As at March 31, 2023

Total cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed duss of micro and small enterprises

Disputed dues of cred|tors other than micro enterprises and small entarprises

2386

Total

2386

Detalls of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and

I Act, 2006 (M5MED Ac) :

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

Principal amount due te micro and small enterprises
Interest due on sbove

appointed day during each accounting year
without adding the Interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.

Tha t of further
small enterprise for the g af di

g due and pay

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of sach accounting year
le even in the succeeding years, until slich date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
Il as a deductible axpenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

The principal ameunt and the interest dus thereon remalning unpald to any supgller as at the end of eash accounting year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the ameunts of the payment made to the supplier beyand the

The amount of interest dus and payable for the period of delay in making payment [which have been pald but beyond the appainted day during the year) but!

Trade payabies are not- Interast bearing and are normally settled an 30-90 days terms,

For explanation on the Trust's risk management palicies, refer note 27

13 Other financial liabilities

Asat Asat
| Particul
= March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
|Interest acerued but nat due on berrowings 167 167
Total 1.67 1.67
14 Other current liabilities
L As at Asat
i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Statutory dues 15.68 16.94
Tatal 15.68 16.94

[This spaen Is imtentionally left Blank]
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15 Revenue from operations

Particul Year ended Year ended
culars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest income (refer note 23)
- on loans given to subsidiaries 1,810.24 556.74
- on non-convertible debentures issued by subsidiaries 46.56 20.65
- on optionally-convertible debentures issued by subsidiaries 27172 90.90
Total 2,128.52 668.29
16 Finance costs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Finance cost on Non-convertible debentures 637.47 210.31
Total 637.47 210.31
17 Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Miscellaneous expenses 0.23 0.91
Total 0.23 0.91
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18 Tax expense

19

The major companents of income tax expense for the period are:

Year ended Year ended

PArticatans March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 15,13 15.05
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year (0.05) -
I tax reported in the statement of profit or loss 15.08 15.05
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024:

= Year ended Year ended
rartigiars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit before tax 1,511.13 4B3.84
Enacted income tax rate in India 42.74% 42.74%
Computed expected tax 645.92 206.81
Effect of:
Impact of exemption u/s 10{23FC} of the Income Tax Act, 1961 available to the Trust (630.79) {19175}
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (0.05) =
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 15.08 15.05

Earnings per unit (EPU)

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during

the year

Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of unils outstanding during

the year plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units inta unit capital.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit after tax for calculating basic and diluted earnings per unit attributable to unitholders (INR 1,496.05 468.79
millions}

. 2 158.00 61.04
Weighted average number of units in calculating basic and diluted earnings per unit (No. in million)
Face value per unit {In INR) 100 100
Basic and diluted earnings per unit (In INR) 9.47 7.68
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20

(a)

(b)

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Trust's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that

require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements,

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities or fair value disclosures within the next financial year, are described below. The Trust based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Trust. Such changes are reflected in the

assumptions when they occur.

Fair valuation and disclosures

SEBI Circulars Issued under the InvIT Regulations require disclosures relating to net assets at fair value and total returns at fair value (refer note 21). In estimating
the fair value of investments in subsidiaries (which constitute substantial portion of the net assets), the Trust engages independent gualified external valuers to
perform the valuation. The management works closely with the valuers to establish the appropriate valuation technigues and inputs to the model. The
management reports the valuation report and findings to the Board of the Investment Manager annually to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
transmission projects. The inputs to the valuation models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as WACC, Tax rates, Inflation rates, etc. Changes In assumptions about
these factors could affect the fair value.

impairment of non-current financial assets

Non-current financial assets of the Trust primarily comprise of investments in subsidiaries.

The provision for impalrment/(reversal) of impairment of investments in subsidiaries is made based on the difference between the carrying amounts and the
recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of the investments in subsidiaries has been computed by external independent valuation experts based on value in
use calculation for the underlying projects (based on discounted cash flow model). On a periodic basis, according to the recoverable amounts of individual portfolio
assets computed by the valuation experts, the Trust tests for impairment on the amounts Invested in the respective subsidiary companies based on the valuation
exercise so carried out, There is no impairment for the year ended March 31, 2024. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the
underlying projects are disclosed and further explained in Nate 22.
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21 Financial Instruments by category

2

(¥]

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Set out below Is @ comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Trust's financial instruments as of March 31, 2024 :

Fair value through Falriplli e theoiigh
Particulars Amortised cost other comprehensive | Total carrying value Total fair value
profit and loss
income
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 471 - - 4,71 471
Investments (including loan to subsidiaries) 22,700.41 - 22,700.41 23,5B8.12
Investments in Mutual funds - 451.35 - 451,35 45135
Other bank balances 155.00 - - 155,00 155.00
Dther financial assets 0.75 . - 0.75 0.75
Total 22 860.87 ﬂilﬁ - 2331222 24,199.53
Financial lzbilities
Borrawings 744181 - - 744181 7,466.44
Trade payables 483 - . 493 483
Other fi fal liabllIties 1,67 - - 1.67 1.67
Tatal 7,448.41 - - 7.,448.41 7.473.04
Sat out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Trust’s financial Instruments as of March 31, 2023 ;
Fair value throu
Particulars Amaortisad cost Falrulus ticouin other mmprehnn::m Total carrying valua Total fair value
profit and loss
__Income
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4.10 - . 4.10 4.10
Investments {including loan to subsidiaries) 22,700.41 - - 22,700.41 23,555.52
Investments in Mutual funds - 47284 - 472.84 47284
Other bank balances 176.24 - - 17624 176.24
Other fi Tal assets 0.86 = . 0.86 0.86
Tatal 22,B81.61 472,84 = 23,354.45 24.209.56
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 7.416.24 - - 741624 739403
Trade payables 23.86 - . 23,86 23.86
Other financial ||abilities 167 - - 1.67 167
Total 7.441.77 - - 744177 7.419.56
Carrying values of Investments, Loans, other financial assats, bar gs, trade payablas and other f| ial liabilities approxil their fair values.
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabllities as of
Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using
Particulars Quated prices in Significant Significant
active markets {Level 1) | ohservable inputs (Level| unobservable inputs
2} {Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value:
March 31, 2024
Quoted [nvestments - invastrnent in mutual funds 451.35 - -
March 31, 2023
Quoted investrments - Investrnent in mutual funds 47284 - -
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
March 31, 2024
Investment in subsidiaries (including loan to subsidi ] - . 23,588,12
March 31, 2023
in subsidiarles (including lean to subsidi | - - 23,555,52
Liabilities for which fair value disclosures are given:
March 31, 2024
| ing = 7.466.44 <
March 31, 2023
Borrowlings - 7,394.03 -
There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.
Investment in mutual funds though unlisted, are quoted on recognised stock exchanges at their previous day NAVs which is the quota for the day.
Description of significant vable inputs to valuati
[significant unohservable inputs Input for Input for Sensitivity of input to the Increase /(decrease) in fair value
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 fair value March31,2024 | March 31, 2023
WACC 8.02% to B.O7% 7.50% to B.55% +0.5% 1.197.50) {1,204.00)
0.5% 1,348.68 1,355.00
Tax rate (normal tax and MAT] MAT - 17.47% MAT - 17.47% +2% (79.57) (402.00)
Normal tax - 25.17% Narmal tax - 25.17% -2% 55.45 389.00
Escalation rate for exp 2.5% to 5% 2.5% to 5% +20% [546.50) (220.02)
] -20% 520.65 | 184.42

[This spaca is

intentionally left blank]




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

23 Related party disclosures
I List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

a) Entity with control over the Trust
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus

b) Entity with significant influence over the Trust
Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML] - Investment Manager
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Ultimate holding Company of ERAML

c) Subsidiaries
Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited (DMTCL}
NRSS XXX (B) Transmission Limited [NRSS)

. List of related parties as per Regulation 2(1)(zv) of the InvIT Regulations
a) Parties to Anzen
Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project manager
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager
Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL) - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

b) Promotaers of the parties to Anzen specified in (a) above

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Promoters of SEPL
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited (w.e.f. 29 March 2023) Promoters of ERAML
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited (upto 2B March 2023) Promoters of ERAML
Axis Bank Limited Promaters of ATSL

) Directors of the parties to Anzen specified in (3) above
i) Directors of SEPL

Vijayanand Semletty |w.e.f. 2 August 2023)

Avinash Prabhakar Rao (upto 2 August 2023)

Sushant Sujir Nayak

Tharuvai Venugopal Rangaswami

ii) Directors of ERAML
Venkatchalam Ramaswamy
Subahoo Chordia
Sunil Mitra
Prabhakar Panda (upto 1 April 2023)
Ranjita Deo
Shiva Kumar
Bala C Deshpande (w.e.f. 1 April 2023)
Nupur Garg {w.e.f. 23 May 2023)

iii)  Key Managerial Personnel of ERAML
Ranjita Dea {(Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer)
Vaibhav Doshi (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f. 1 February 2023)
lalpa Parekh {Company Secretary)

iv) Directors of ATSL
Deepa Rath
Prashant Ramrao Joshi (w.e.f. 16 January 2024)
Sumit Bali {w.e.f. 16 January 2024)
Rajesh Kumar Dahiya {upto 15 January 2024)
Ganesh Sankaran (upto 15 January 2024)
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. Aolated party transactions:

for the year ended March 31, 2024

. Yearended Year ended
Particulars Name of related party Miarch 31, 2024 Match 31, 2023
Issue af units Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus = 5,380.00
Issue of units Sekura Energy Private Limited = 238000
Issue of units Axis Bank Limited . 500,00
Issue af NCD Axis Bank Limited . 3,000.00
Interest expense on NCD Axis Bank Limited 240.79 79 66
Interest income on Loan given Darbhanga - Motlhari Transmisshon Company Limited 1.053.20 313.35
Interest income on Loan glvan NASS XXX| (B) Transmission Limited 757.04 24349
Interest income on OCO Narkhanga - Motihari Transmissinn Campany Limited 157 AR s8.83
Interest income on OCD INASS XXX {8) Transmission Limited 113.84 3207
Interest Incame an NCO Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Umited 46 56 2065
Interest income on investment in fived deposits Auds Bank Limited 1154 8.62
Feimbursement of expensas fram s Bank Limited 405 -
In Mxed deposits Axis Bank Limited 2170 3,548.91
Redemptian of fixed deposits Auis Bank Limited 4294 3,373.67
Loan given Darbib = Matihari T ission Company Lim|ted 6,910,00
Loan given NRSS XX (B) Transmission Limited 5,030.00
Loan repaid Darbhanga - Motlhar| Transmission Company Limited . 327.50
Loan repaid MRS5S X% (B] Transmission Limited - 29850
Reimbursement of expenses Sekura Energy Private Limited 00s 10153
Reimbursement of expenses Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.05
Unit placerment fees Edelweiss Finandal Servicas Umited 1109
Arranger fees for NCD facilities Axis Bank Limited A .89
Trustee Fee Axls Trustes Services Limitad 07 0.26
Distribution to unit holders Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 908.10 11631
Distribution to unit holders Sakura Energy Private Limited 23253 29531
istribution to unit holders Axis Bank Limited 112 397
n Equity | of DMTCL Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus - 5,453.00
I In Equity i af NRSS Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus - 413287
Investment in OCD of DIMTCL Edolweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus . 87710
Investment in OCD of NRSS Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 63244
Investment in NCD of DMTCL Edelweiss Infrastruclure Yield Plus - 291.00
. Related party
Asat Asat
Particulars Name of refated party March 31, 2029 March 31, 2023
[Recelvablo/ (Payable)) [Receivable (Payab
Loan to subsidiaries Darb - hari T ission Company Limited 5,562 50 6,582 50
Loan to subsidiaries NRSS XX (B) Transmission Limited 4,73150 4,731.50
Balances with banks in current accounts Axis Bank Limited 471 3.40
Flxed deposits #Autis Bank Limited 155,00 176.2¢
[ accrued on fixed deposits Axis Bank Limited - 011
Trade payables Sekura Energy Private Limited - (19.58)
Trade payables Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited + (0.05)
Trate payables Axis Trustee Services Umited = (0.28)
Interest accrued but not due on borrawings #uxis Bank Limited (o.66) (0.68)
Outstanding NCD Axis Bank Limited {3,000,00) (3,000 .00)
Investment in OCD - ihari Campany Limited a77.10 B77.14
Investment in OCD MRS5S XXX1 (B Transmission Limited 63244 63244
in NCD Darbh ~ Matihari Transmission Company Limited 281.00 29104

Details in respect of related party transactions invol

Iving acquisition of InviT assets

2/P/cIR/: /115 dated 66 July 2023 as

any guidelines and cireulars Issued th

For the year ended March 31, 2024:

No acquisition during the yesr ended 31 March 2024,

Far the year ended March 31, 2023:

as required by Para 4.6.6 of Chapter 4 of S5EBI Master Clreular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
|"SEBI Circulars") are as follows:

Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has acquired Darbhanga - Motibari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NASS 200%|(8) Transmission Limited {'NRSS') from Edelweiss Infrastructure

Yield Flus {'ETYP') p to share purch dated an 1 N her 2022 and suk clesing an 11 Nevember 2022 The Trust issued its units amounting to  Rs. 4,700 miliian
and Rs 3,600 milkion ta EYP in exchange of 100% equlty stake in DMTCL and NASS respectively

Summary of valuation rapart
[Particul DMTCL NRSS

Enterprise value as at 30 lune 2022 12,507.00 9,857.00

Method of valuation Discounted Cash Flew| Discounted Cash Flow

Diseeunt rate [WACT) B.A5N H.24%

Enterprise value as disclosed above are based solely on the falr valuation report dated 18 Octoher 2022 of the valuar by the under the InviT

Regulations.

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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24

25

27

(a)

(b)

Capital and other commitments
The Trust has no commitments as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 : NIl).

Contingent liability
The Trust has no contingent liability as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 : Nil).

Segment reporting
The Trust's activities comprise of owning and investing in SPVs to generate cash flows for distribution to unitholders. Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS - 108
“Operating Segments”, this activity falls within a single operating segment and accordingly the disclosures of Ind AS -108 have not separately been given.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Trust’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Trust's operations.
The Trust's principal financial assets include investments, loans, cash and bank balances and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.The Trust may be
exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Investment Manager oversees the management of these risks. All derivative activities for risk management purposes
are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Trust's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes
may be undertaken. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.The Risk Management policies of the Trust
are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Trust, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Trust's activities.Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Trust's risk management framework.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affacted by markat risk include loans and borrowings and investments.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Trust's borrowings

are at fixed rate, hence the Trust is not exposed to Interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Trust did not have any
exposure in foreign currency as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023,

Equity price risk

The Trust's investments in equity shares of subsidiaries are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of thase investments. Reports on the
equity portfolio are submitted to the senior management on a regular basis. The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager reviews and approves all equity investment
decisions, At the reporting date, the exposure to equity Investments in subsidiary at carrying value was Rs. 9,585.88 Million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 9,585.88 Million) .
Sensitivity analyses of significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement are disclosed in Note 22,

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Trust is exposed to

credit risk from its investing activities including loans to subsidiaries, deposits with banks and other financial instruments. As at March 31, 2024, the credit risk is considered
low since substantial transactions of the Trust are with its subsidiaries.

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust may encounter difficulty in meeting its present and future obligations associated with financial liabilities that are required to be settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Trust's objective is to, at all times, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral obligations. The Trust requires funds both for
short term operational needs as well as for long term investment programs. The Trust closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It aims to
minimise these risks by generating sufficient cash flows from its current operations, which in addition to the available cash and cash equivalents and liquid investments will provide

liquidity.

The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The other financial liabilities are with shart term durations, The table below summarises
the maturity profile of the Trust’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Particulars On demand Less than 3 months | 3 months to 1 year 1year ta 5 years mare than 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2024

Non convertible debentures (Secured) - - - 7,411.81 - 7,441.81

Trade payables - 4,93 - - = 4.93

Other financial liabilities - 1.67 - - . 167

| Interest on borrowings 151.83 457.56 921,57 - 1.530.96
= 158.43 457.56 8,363.38 = 8,979.37

As at March 31, 2023

Non convertible debentures (Secured) - = . 7.416.24 - 7,416,24

Trade payables ~ 23,86 - = = 23.86

Other financial liabilities - 1.67 - - - 167

Interest on borrowings - 152.24 459,66 1,530.96 = 2,142,856
- 171.77 459.66 8,947.20 - 9,584.63

[This spaca is intentionally left blank]
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28 Capital management

Far the purpose of the Trust's capital management, capital includes issued unit capital and all other reserves attributable to the unit halders of the Trust. The
primary objective of the Trust's capital management [s to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximize unit holder value,

The Trust manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to It in light of changes In ecanomic conditions and the requir ts of the financlal covenants,
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Trust may adjust the distribution to unithelders (subject to the provisions of InviT regulations which require
distribution of at least 30% of the net distributable cash flows of the Trust to unit holders), return capital to unitholders or issue new units. The Trust manitors
caplital using a gearing ratio, which Is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Trust's policy is to keep the gearing ratio optimum, The Trust includeas
within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents and ather bank balances.

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Borrowings 7,441.81 7.416.24
Trade Payables 4393 23.85
Other financial liabllities 167 1.67
Less: cash and other bank balances {159.71) {180.34)
Net debt [A] 7,288.70 7,261.43
Unit capital 15,624.79 15,624.79
Other eguity 225.26 272.87
Total equity capital [B] 15,850.05 15,897.67
Capital and net debt [C=A+B] 23,138.75 23,159,10
Gearing ratio (%) [A/C] 0.31 0.31

Financial Covenants

In order to achieve this overall objectiva, the Trust's capital management, amongst other things, alms to ensure that it meets financlal covenants attached to the
Interest-bearing loans and borrawings that define capital structure requirements. There have been no breaches In the financial covenants of any Interest-bearing
loans and borrowing in the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024,

29 Subsequent event
On May 24, 2024, the Board of directors of the Investment Manager approved a distribution of Rs.2.45 per unit for the period lanuary 01, 2024 to March 31, 2024
to be paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration,

30 Contingent Consideration

As per the Securities Purchase Agreement, any amounts due to Darbhanga - Motiharl Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission
Limited |'NRSS') pursuant to any future order passed by any competent autharity pursuant to claims or appeals filed by Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission
Company Limited {'DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission Limited |'NRS5'} until the Closing Date (including any claims or appeals filed in relation to the CERC
Order such as the appeal filed by DMTCL dated June 24, 2022) (*Future Receivables") Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust/Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission
Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS') shall pursuant to the receipt of final, non-appealable orders of a court of competent
jurisdiction, be transferred to Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus. Based on the management assessment of the possible outcome of these matters and timing
thereof, the same is not considered as contingent consideration as per Ind AS 103 Business Camblnation.

31 Previous year figures
Previous period/year's figures have been regrouped / raarranged wherever nacessary to confirm the current period classification.

FarSRBC& COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Edelwelss Real Assets Managers Limited
(As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)

Cl0 & Whole-time Director Chief Financial Officer

Partner

Membership Number ; 408869 DIN No. : 09603160

Place : Mumbai

Date : May 24, 2024 W','-Q’e"
% .
lalpa Parekh
Company Secretary

Membership Number : A44507
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Unit holders of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Anzen India Energy
Yield Plus Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the InvIT") and its subsidiaries (the InvIT and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet
as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive income, the consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, the consolidated Statement
of Changes in Unit Holders’ Equity for the year then ended, the consolidated Statement of Net
Assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated Statement of Total Returns at fair
value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (‘"NDCFs") of the InvIT and each of its
subsidiaries for the year then ended, and a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory notes (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as
amended including any quidelines and circulars issued thereunder (together referred as the
“InvIT Regulations™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group, as at March 31, 2024, its consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, its
consolidated cash movements and its consolidated movement of the unit holders’ funds for the
year ended March 31, 2024, its consolidated net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, its
consolidated total returns at fair value and the net distributable cash flows of the InvIT and
each of its subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements' section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the InvIT Requlations
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 9(c)(i) which describes the classification of "Unit Capital" as
"Equity" instead of the applicable requirements of Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments:

Presentation, in order to comply with the relevant InvIT Regulations. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

SR BC&COLLP, aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No, AAB-4318
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Floar, Kolkata-700 016
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed by us, including
those procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit
opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Applicability of Appendix D of Ind AS 115 'Service Concession Arrangement’ (as described
in Note 30 of the consolidated financial statements)
The Group through its subsidiaries acts Our audit procedures included, among others,

as a transmission licensee under the the following:

Electricity Act, 2003 holding valid

licenses for 25 years. Generally, the e Obtained and read the TSAs to understand
subsidiaries have entered into roles and responsibilities of the grantor.
Transmission Services Agreements

("TSA"™) with Long Term Transmission e Evaluated the TSAs to understand whether
Customers ("LTTC") through a tariff- the grantor controls significant residual
based bidding process to Build, Own, interest in the infrastructure at the end of
Operate and Maintain ("BOOM") the the term of the arrangement through
transmission infrastructure for a period ownership, beneficial ownership or

of 35 years. otherwise.

The Management of Investment Manager | ¢  Discussed with management regarding the

(“management”) is of the view that the extent of grantor’s involvement in the
grantor as defined under Appendix D of transmission assets and grantor's intention
Ind AS 115 ("Appendix D") requires not to control the significant residual interest
transmission licensee to obtain various through ownership, beneficial entitlement or
approvals under the regulatory otherwise.

framework to conduct its operations
both during the period of the license as | ¢  Assessed the positions taken by other

well as at the end of the license period. entities in India with similar projects/TSAs as
In the view of management, generally to the extent of involvement of the grantor
the grantor's involvement and approvals and the consequent evaluation of the

are to protect public interest and are not applicability of Appendix D for such entities
intended to control, through ownership, and confirmed our understanding.

beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any

significant residual interest in the e Read and assessed the disclosures included
transmission infrastructure at the end of in the consolidated financial statements for

the term of the arrangement.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

transmission infrastructure at the end of
the term of the arrangement.
Accordingly, management is of the view
that Appendix D is not applicable to the
Group.

Considering the judgement involved in
determining the grantor’s involvement
and whether the grantor controls,
through ownership, beneficial
entitlement or otherwise, and any
significant residual interest in the
transmission infrastructure at the end of
the term of the arrangement, this is
considered as a key audit matter.

e Read and assessed the disclosures included
in the consolidated financial statements for
compliance with the relevant accounting
standards requirements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

(as described in Note 3 and 30 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group owns and operates various
power transmission assets. The carrying
value of the power transmission assets
as at March 31, 2024, included under
property, plant and equipment INR
19,121.15 million.

In accordance with Ind AS 36, at each
reporting period end, management
assesses the existence of impairment
indicators of property, plant and
equipment. In case of existence of
impairment indicators, property, plant
and equipment and balances are
subjected to impairment test.

The processes and methodologies for
assessing and determining the fair value
is based on complex assumptions, that
by their nature imply the use of
management's judgment, in particular
with reference to identification of
forecast of future cash flows relating to
the period covered by the respective
subsidiary's transmission license, debt
equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity,
residual value, etc.

Considering the judgment involved in
determination of fair values due to
inherent uncertainty and complexity of
the assumptions used in determination
of fair values, this is considered as a key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others,
the following:

e Read the policy, evaluated the design and
tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over assessment of impairment of
property, plant and equipment and the
assumptions used by management.

e Obtained and read the valuation report of the
Group's independent valuation expert, and
assessed the expert’s competence, capability
and objectivity.

e Involved our subject matter experts to
perform an independent review of
methodology, estimates and key
assumptions (weighted average cost of
capital, debt equity ratio, forecast period,
terminal growth rate) used in the valuation
by the Company's independent valuation
expert.

e Tested on sample basis that the tariff
revenues considered in the respective
valuation models are in agreement with
TSAs/tariff orders and evaluated the
reasonableness of cost and revenue
attributes considered in forecast.

e Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy
and validity of the data used in the
calculations.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures
included in the consolidated financial
statements

Acquisition of Transmission Special Purpose Vehicles ("SPVs") classified as asset

acquisitions (as described in Note 30 of th

e consolidated financial statements)

The Group acquires operational
transmission SPVs from the Sponsor or
from third parties. The purchase
consideration primarily pertains to the
fair value of the transmission assets. All
such assets are operational assets with
fixed tariff revenues under the
Transmission Services Agreements
(TSAs) for 35 years. The only key
activity for these SPVs is the
maintenance of the transmission assets
which is outsourced to third parties.
There are very few employees in these
entities and no other significant
processes are performed for earning
tariff revenues in any of the SPVs.

Based on evaluation of the above fact
pattern vis-a-vis the guidance on
definition of business under Ind AS,
including evaluation under the optional
concentration test, and also keeping in
view the relevant guidance on similar
fact pattern available under accounting
standards applicable in other
jurisdictions, management classified the
acquisition of transmission SPVs as
asset acquisition.

Considering the judgement involved in
determining if the acquisition of
transmission SPVs constitute business
or asset, it is considered as a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others,
the following:

Read the relevant guidance under Ind AS on
determining if the acquired SPVs constitutes
a business.

Assessed the activities of the transmission
SPVs.

Read and assessed the Group's accounting
policy for recognition and classification on
the acquisition of transmission SPVs.

Discussed with management the key
assumption underlying the Group’s
assessment and tested the underlying data
used for classification made by the Group.

Read and assessed the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements for
compliance with the relevant accounting
standards requirement.

Disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total

Returns at Fair Value as per InvIT regulations

(as described in Note 30 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group is required to disclose
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value
and Statement of Total Returns at Fair
Value pursuant to SEBI circulars issued
under the InvIT regulations which
requires fair valuation of the assets.
Such fair valuation has been carried out
by the independent valuer appointed by
the Group.

Our audit procedures included, among others the
following:

Read the requirements of InvIT regulations
for disclosures relating to Statement of Net
Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total
Returns at Fair Value.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

For the purpose of the above, fair value
is determined by forecasting and
discounting future cash flows.

The processes and methodologies for
assessing and determining the fair value
is based on complex assumptions, that
by their nature imply the use of
management's judgment, in particular
with reference to identification of
forecast of future cash flows relating to
the period covered by the respective
subsidiary's transmission license, debt
equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity,
residual value, etc.

Considering the judgment involved in
determination of fair values due to
inherent uncertainty and complexity of
the assumptions used in determination
of fair values, this is considered as a key
audit matter.

Read the policy, evaluated the design and
tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over assessment of fair value and
the assumptions used by management.

Read the policy, evaluated the design and
tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over preparation statement of Net
Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total
Returns at Fair Value as per InvIT regulations
and the assumption used by management.

Obtained and read the valuation report by
the InvIT's independent valuation expert, and
assessed the expert's competence, capability
and objectivity.

Involved our subject matter experts to
perform an independent review of
methodology, estimates and key
assumptions (weighted average cost of
capital, debt equity ratio, forecast period,
terminal growth rate) used in the valuation
by the Company's independent valuation
expert.

Tested on sample basis that the tariff
revenues considered in the respective
valuation models are in agreement with
TSAs/tariff orders and evaluated the
reasonableness of cost and revenue
attributes considered in forecast.

Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy
and validity of the data used in the
calculations.

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures
included in the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Information

The management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (the “Investment Manager™) is
responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after

the date of this auditor’s report.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Management of the Investment Manager ('the Management”) is responsible for the
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash movements and the consolidated movement
of the unit holders’ funds for the year ended March 31, 2024, the consolidated net assets at
fair value as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated total returns at fair value of the InvIT and
the net distributable cash flows of the InvIT and each of its subsidiaries in accordance with the
requirements of the InvIT Regulations, the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule
2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the management, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Investment
Manager and the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management and respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financig
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statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors,
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the InvIT and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements fo
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the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

(b) The Consolidated Balance Sheet and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss are in
agreement with the books of account;

(c) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number: 408869
UDIN: 2440 8869BKBTQE4920
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: May 24, 2024




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
All ampunts in Rupeas million unlass otherwise stated

. As at Asat
particulars e March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and eguipment (3) 19,121.15 20,876.72
[b) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets (4) 6.19 737
(c) Income tax assets (net) 18.07 2435
Total non-current assets 19,14541 21,008.45 |
=
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assels
{i) Investments (s 68156 1,306.42
(Il) Trade receivables (7] E: 1203
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents (8a) 228.40 65.35
(i) Bank balances other than disclosed in note BA above (88) 155.00 176.24
[v) Other financial assets (4) 68921 556.62
(b} Other current assets (6) 30.87 3113
1,785.04 2.247.79
Total assets 20,930.45 23,256.24
—————
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Unit capital 3} 15,624.79 15,624.79
[b) Other equity (10} (2,356.20) (515.19)
Total equity 13,268.59 15,1058.60
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities
(2) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings (11) 7,441.81 7,416.24
(b} Provisions (12) 2.34 1.89
Tatal non-current liabilities 7,444.15 7,418.13
[2) Current liabllities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables (13}
(a} total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 012 4.2
[b] total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises 26.48 58.42
and small enterprise
(i} Other financial liabilities (14} 63.52 632.99
(b) Other currant liabilities - (15) 126.88 3175
(c) Provisions (12) 0.71 0.63
Total current liabilities 217.71 728.51
Total equity and liabilities 20,930.45 23,256.24
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the c lidated finandial st

As per our repart of even date

ForSRBCECOLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 324982E/E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number : 408869
Place : Mumbai

Date: May 24, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
{As Investment Manager ta Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)

njita Ded

ClO & Whaole-time Director

DIN No. : 09609160

gfoe=

Jalpa Parekh ~
Company Secretary

Membership Number : A44507

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2024

»

/
Vaibhav Doshi
Chief Finandial Officer




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Consofidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in Rupees millinn unless otherwise stated

—_—
Year ended Year ended
Parflcilars Notex March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
—_—
INCOME
Revenus from contract with customers (15) 2,426.41 936,60
Income from investment in mutual fund 67.21 5137
Interest income an investment in fixed deposits 13.04 8.62
Other income 14.44 2,52
Total income 2,521.10 99320
EXPENSES
o ion and mal - 78.07 30.60
Employee benefit expense (17) 18,40 673
Depreciation expensa (3) 1,872.50 770,13
Finance casts {18) 637.87 439.20
Investmant managament fees (refer note 19 (3)) 54.90 2418
Project management fees [refer note 19(b)) 20,66 10.53
Insurance expensas 38.27 20.87
Legal and professional fees 39.10 35,59
Annual listing fee 2,08 2,62
Rating fee 251 2.56
Valuation expenses 0.5 0.30
Trustas fes 1.83 0.58
Paymant to auditors
- Statutory audit fees (including limited review) 5.94 373
- Dther services (including cartifications) 034 0,02
Other expenses [19) 18.87 7.82
Total expenses 2,80329 1,356.28
Loss before tax {282.19) {357.08)
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax (25) 15.13 (3724
(2) Deferred tax (26) - *
(3} Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (26) (0.05] =
Loss for the year [A] {257.27) {319.24)|
Other Comprehensive Income
Itam= that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsegquent periods (0.08) {0.03)
itzms that will be reclassified to profit or lass in subsequent periods = =]
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [8] (0.08} [0.03}
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [A+8] {297.35) {219.2
Loss for the year
Attributable 1o ;
Unit holders (297.27) (319.24)
Man- Cantralling interest E: %
Total comprehensive income far the year:
Attributable tn ;
Unit halders [297.25) (318.27)
Nan- Cantralling interest = =
Earnings per unit (Rs. per unit) (28)
Basic and dlluted {1.88) [5.23)
y of material accounting policies 2

o

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the cor i financial

As per our repart of even date

FarSRBC& COLLP
Chartered Accountants
rm Registrgtion No: 324882E/£300003

.ol

Partner

Membership Number : 408889
Place ; Mumbal

Date : Mey 24, 2024

For and on behalf of the Bozrd of Directors of
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
(As Investment Manager te Anzen India Energy Yield Pluls Trust)

P
Raffita e’ Vaibhav Doshi
CID & Whole-time Director Chief Financlal Cfficer

DIN No. : 09609160

e

Jalpa Parekh ~ 7
Company Secretary
Membershipg Number : 444507

Flace : Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2024




Anzan India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 21, 2023
Cash flow from pperating activities
Loss bafore tax (282.19) {357.08)
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows: .
Depreciation expense 1,872.50 770,13
Interest income on investment in fixed deposits (13.04) (8.62)
Interest income on income tax refund (0.99) -
Income fram investment in mutual fund (67.21} (51.37)
Liahilitias no longar reguired written back (0.26) 5
Finance costs 637.87 43920
Dperating profit before working capital changes 2,146,68 792.26
Working capital adjustment
{Increass) / Decrease in other assets 0.25 (10.17)
(Inzraase) / Decrease in other financial assets (10.59) {313.68)
(Inzreass) f Decrease in trade recalvables 1203 1,407.59
Incraasa / (Decraase) In trade payables (36.26) 3219
Ingraasa / (Dacraase) in provisians 0.45 (D.15)
Incraase / (Dacrease] in ather liabilitizs 95.13 29,35
Incraase / [Dezreass) in other financial labilities (569.39) [994.78)
Cash flow generated from operations 1,638.31 94260
Disact taxes pald (net of refunds) (7.80) [60.89]
Nat cash flow from operating activities [A] 1,630.51 88171
Cash flow from investing activities
Purciiase ol property, plant and equipmentlincluding capital work-In-grogress and
capimal advancas) (17.03) -
Acguisition of proparty, plant and equipment# = (13,446.85)
Acquisition of other assets | net of ather labilitles)# - (1,811.45)
Invastrnent in fixed deposits (61.70) (9,426.33)
Proceeds fram maturity of fixed deposits 62.94 10,424.36
Irvastrmant in mutual funds (3,987.75) (8,693.97)
Precesds fram sale of Investment in mutual fupds 4,679.82 8,006.51
Intarast incame an Investment In fiked deposits 12332 B.46
Net cash flow from f{used in) investing activities [B] GHA.S0 (14,939.27}
Cash flow from financing activities
Proczeds from issue of Unit capital* . 7,500.00
Payment of unit issue expenses - (175.21)
Proceods [rom non convertible debentures (secured) - 7.500.00
Repsyment of non cenvertible dobentures (seclred) - {12,234.00)
Acquisition of barrewlnget - 12,160.67
Payirent of dislribulicns to unit helders {1,543.66) {195.92)
Payment of Interest on NCD {61190} {296.33)
Payment of athor finance costs (0.40) -
Payment of upfrant fees for NCO - (91.63)
Net cash flew frem/ (used In] financing activities [C] (2.155.96] 14.107.58
Net increase / (decrease] in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) 163.05 50.02
Cash and cash ecuivelents at the beginning of the yezar (refer MNete EA) 65,35 i
Cash and cash eguivalents en acquisitlan . 1533
| Cash and czsh equivalants 3t the end ef the year [refer Note 841 228.40 65.35

*Trust has purchased 16.30 million and 9.83 millien equity shares Issued by Darbhanga - Matihari Transmission Company Limited {'DMTCLY) and NRSS
XXXI{B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS') in exchange of issue if its 83.00 million units. The same has not been reflected in cash flaw being a non- cash

transaction,

# Pertains to projects acquired in previous year viz. DMTCL and NRSS- Refer Note 32

3 Asat Asat
Components of cash and cash equivalents: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4 L)
Balances with banks :
- On current accounts 108.40 65.35
- Deposit with original meturity of less than 3 months 120.00 =
[Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 8A) 228.40 65.35




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

Reconciliation b opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities {Including current maturities)

Year ended Year mp,
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31.2?23
Opening total borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) 7.417.91 i
Cash flow
- Interest paid (611.30} (296.33)
- Proceeds/|repayments) ] 7,500,00
Interest accrued 611.90 298.00
Others (ancillary borrowing cost) 25.57 (83.75)
Closing total borrowings (including Interest accrued but not due) 7.443.48 7.417.91

Summary of material accounting policies

As per our report of even date

ForSRECECOLLP
Chartered Accountants

Membership Number ; 4DBBES
Place : Mumbal
Date: May 24, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
[As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yisld Plus Trus

QA
/

Vaibhav Doshi

Chief Financial Officer

i

CIO & Whole-time Director
DIN No, : 09605160

aRe

Jalpa Parekh

Company Secretary
Membership Number : A44507

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2024




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unit holders' Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

A. Unit capital

Particulars ¥ unityin Amount
million
As at April 01, 2022 z "
Units issued during the year [refer note 9(a)] 158.00 15,800.00
Less: Issue expenses [refer note 3(b]] (175.21)
As at March 31, 2023 158.00 15,624.79
Units issued during the year [refer note 8(a)] - £
As at March 31, 2024 158.00 15,624.79
B. Other equity
J Other
Reserves and Surplu comprehensive
Particulars income Total
: Actuarial gain/(loss)
Retained Earnings | | yefined liabilities
As at April 01, 2022 - = -
Loss for the year (315.24) - (319.24)
Other comprehensive income for the year - (D.03) {0.03)
Less: Distribution during the year [195.92) (195.92)
As at March 31, 2023 [515.16) (0.03) (515.19)
Loss for the year ' (297.27) - (297.27)
Other comprehensive income for the year - (0.08) (0.08)
Less: Distribution during the year [1,543.66) - (1,543.66)
As at March 31, 2024 (2,356.09) {0.11) (2,356.20)
Note:
The distribution during the year does not inciude the distribution relating to last quarter of FY 2023-24 which will be paid after
March 31, 2024,

The distributions made by Anzen ta ts unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) of Anzen under the InvIT
Regulations and hence part of the same includes rapayment of capital as well.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accourilants Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited

Firm Registration No: 324982E/£300003 (As Investment Manzager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
o

per Amit SW na% Vaibhav Doshi

Partner CI0 & Whale time Dircctor Chief Financial Officer

Membership Number ; 408869 DIN No. : 09605160

Place : Mumbai

Date: May 24,2024 R ks
=

Jalpa Parekh

Company Secretary

Membership Number : A44507

Place : Mumbazi
Date : May 24, 2024




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars
(SEBI MASTER CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/DDH5-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 DATED 06 JULY 2023 issued under the InvIT Regulations)

A,

Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2024 (refer note 2 below)

{Rs. in million)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value

A, Assets 20.930.45 24,251.45 23,25524 24,840.40
B. Liabilities (at book value) 7,661.86 7,661.86 8,145.64 8,146.54
C. Net Asset Value (A-B) 13,268.53 16,599.60 15,109.50 16,693.76
D . Number of units 158.00 158.00 158.00 158.00
E. NAV (C/D) B3.98 105.06 95.63 105.656
Notes:

1. Project wise break up of Fair value of Assets as at March 31, 2024 [Rs. in million)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ("DMTCL") 1345455 13,8435.80
NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited ["MRSS") 10,155.85 10,337.42
Sub total 23,650.40 24,187.22
InvIT Assets 6511.06 653.18
Total Assets 24.261.46 24,840.40

. Fair values of total assats (including project wise break up for DMTCL and NRSS of fair value of total assets) as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 as

disciosed above are based solely on the fair valuation report May 20, 2024 dated and May 23, 2023 respectively of the independent valuer appointed by the

Investment manager under the InviT Regulations.

Statement of Total Return at Fair Value (refer note 1 below}
(Rs. in million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total Comprehensive Income (as per the Statement of Profit and Loss) (297.35) (319.27)
Add/(less): Other Changes in Fair Value (e.g., in Investment property, property, plant &
equipment (if cost model is followed)) not recognized in Total Comprehensive Income 1,746.85 1,584.16
(refer note 1 below)
Total Return 1.449.50 1,264.89
Notes:

. Fair value of assets as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023 and other changes in fair value for the year then ended as disclosed in the above tables are
based on fair valuation report of the independent valuer appointed by the Investment manager under the InvIT Regulations.

. Sensitivity analysis with respect to significant unobservable inputs used In the fair value measurement has been disclosed in Note 23.

As per our repart of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 324982E/E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number : 408869
Place : Mumbai

Date : May 24, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
(As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)

‘R

Ranjita Deo

ClO & Whole-time Director

DIN No. : 09609160

R

Jalpa Parekh
Company Secretary

Membership Number : A44507

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2024

W
Vaibhav Doshi
Chief Financial Officer




Anzen india Energy Yield Plus Trust
Notes to Consolidated Fi fal 5t
Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars

for the year ended March 31,2024

[SEBI MASTER CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 DATED 06 JULY 2023 issued under the InvIT Regulations)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 4.6 OF CHAPTER 4 TO THE SEBI CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HD/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115

A)S of Net butable Cash Flows [NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

{Rs. in Million)

Description

Yearended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Inflow from Project SPV Distributions

Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of interest / accrued interest / additional Interest
Adrl: Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of dividend

Adsl: Cash flows from the SPVs towards the repayment of the debt p
and/ or redemption of debentures issued by 5PVs tn the Anzen Trust
Add: Cash flows from the SPVs through capital reduction by way of a buy back or any other means a3
permitted, subject to applicable law

Inflow from Investments [ Assets

Adid: Cash flows from sale of equity shares or any other investmants in 5PVs adjusted for
reinvested or plannad to be reinvested

Add: Cash flows from the sale of the 5PVs not distributed pursuant to an earlizr plan to reinvest, or if such
atozseds are not intended to be invested subsaquently

Inflow from Liabliities

Add: Cash flows from additional borrowings (including debentures / other securities), frash lssuance of
units, etc.
Other Inflows
Add: Any other income aceruing at the Anzen Trust and not captured above, as deamed necassary by the
Investment Manager, including but not limited to interest / return on surplus cash invested by the Anzen
Trust

ided ta the 5PVs by the Anzen Trust

2,128.52

40.08

712.87

626.00

15,000.00

35,09

Toml cash inflow at the Anzen Trust level (A)

2,158.60

16,373.96

Outflow for Anzen Trust Expenses / Takas
Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expanses incurred at the Anzen Trust, including but not limited to
the fees of the Investment Manager, Project Manager, Trustee, Auditor, Valuer, Credit Rating Agency, fc

Less: Incame tax (if applicable] for standalane Anzen Trust and / or payment of other statutory dues
Qutflaw for Liabilities

Less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal) / red ble preference shares / deb
any dubt raised by refinancing of existing debt

Lass Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requiraments siich as BSRA, minimum cash balance, etc.

s, etc, net of|

Outflow for Assets

35z Amount invested in any of the 5PVs
Less: Amounts set aside to be Invested or planned to be invested, as deemed necessary by the investment
Manager in compliance with the InviT Regulations
Less; Investments including acquisition of other SPVs
Other Qutflows

Less: Any provision ar reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses which may be
due in future

Add / Less: added/ retained in accord
apreements in relation to the Anzcn Trust

Less: Any other eaperise of the Anzen Trust not captured herein as deemed necessary by the nvestment
Manager
Avel / Less; Ay other adjustment ta be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double counting)
cf the same item for the above calculations

e with the transaction documents or the loon|

|606.77)

[15.08)

(22.28)

{438 76)

[15.05)

(155,00}

(15,071.00)

(102.47]

Total cash outfiow fretention at the Anzen Trust level (B)

(644.13)

Net Distributable Cash Flaws (€] = (A+8])

1524.47

INR 1,543.66 million distribution has been paid during the year ended March 31, 2624, (FY 2022-23: INR 195.92 million}




Anten India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Motes to consolidated financial for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts in Rupees milllon unless otherwise stated

m,

n)

Impalmment of financial assets
Majority of the financial assets of the Group pertain to Trade and other racsivables. Considering the pature of business, the Group does not foresee any credit risk on Its tradle 54 other

recelvables which may cause an impairment. As per the T5A, tha recelvables arn covered by clause of payment security mechanism which ensures receipt of all trade recelvables, aio, the
Group does not have any past history of impairment of Trade and other receivables.

Financial liabifities
initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabifities are classified, at Initial recognition, as financial linbilities at fair valus through profit or |oss, loans and borrowlngs, payables, or as d ives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
All cial lnbilitles are ised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and bles, net of directly attrbutabé ion casts.

The Group's financlal liabilitias include borrowings and related costs, trade and other payables, and derfvative financial instruments.

Subseqguent measurement

For purposes of sub t, financial iabiiities are classified [n two categories:
» Financial iabflities at fair value through profit or loss

= Financial labilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profitor loss
Financlal llabilitins at fair valus through profit or loss include financial labilities held for trading and financlal (iabifities designated upon inltial racagnitian as at fair value through profit sr loss.

Einancial labilities are classifiad as held for trading if thay are Incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes dervative ial fnstruments { into
by the Group that are not designated a5 hedging Instruments in hedge refationships 2s defined by Ind AS 103, Separated bedded derivatives are alse classified as held for tRding uniess they
are desig 4 a5 affective hedging i Gains or losses on fabilities held for trading are recognised in tha profitor loss.

Financia! labilities at amprtised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the catagory most relsvant to the Group, After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and b ings are suk Iy d at
|osses are resognised in profit or loss when the labilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation pracess.

Amartised cost is calculated by taking into acsount any dlscount or premium on acquisition and fess or casts that are an intagral part of the £iR. The EIR amartisation is included as finanze costs

isod cost using the EIR method. Gains and

in the statement of profit or loss.

This catzgory lly applies to ¢ inis. For more information refer Note 11.

Derecognition

A fal liabllity Is when the ohligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing financial llability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially diferent terms, or the terms of an existing liabillty are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification s traated as the derecognition of the ariginal liability and the
recognition af a new liability. The dit & |n the respective carrying is recognised in the of profitor loss.

Reclassification of Mnancial ussels

The Group determi of | assets and liabilitles on initial recognition, After initial ition, no reck Is mada for financial assets which are equity Instruments
and ial liabilities. For fi fal assets which are deSt instruments, a reclasification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the

hus model are exp 1o ba infreq The Group's senior management detarmines change in the business madel as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the
Group's apemations Such changes are evident to external parties, A change in the business madal oesurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its
operations. If the Group raclassifies financial assats, it applies the reclacsification prospectively from the reclassification date which s the first day of the immediately next reparting year
fallowing the change in business mode|, The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (includ! pali gains or losses) or [nterest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

» Revised
=] elnssificat
riginal class ion classification Accounting treatment

Ametisid eost FVTRL Fair value is mvfanumd at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortized costand fair
value is rec i in profit or loss

FVTPL Amerised Cast Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR is caleufated based an
the new gross carrving amaount.

amortised cast AvTacl Fair value s measured 21 recizssification date Cifference between previous amartised cost and fair
va|ue Is recosnised in OCI. Na change in EIR due tc reclassification.
Fair value at reclassHication date becomes its new amartised cast earrying amount. However,

FvTac Amortised cost cumulative gain or loss In OC) is adjusted against fair velue C ly, the asset is d a5
| it hati always heen mezsured at amortised cost

FVTEL Ao Fair \IvaIuJe 3t reclaesification dste becames its new Garrying Nao ather Is

Fviad FUTRL Ansels Lunlnue to be muesured at fair velie. Cumiilitivi yoitt cr luss prasiouely recognized in 0O e
redassifled from couity te pratlt er lose the reclzz=llication dare.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Finandial assets and financial liabilities are cffset and the net amount is reparted in the Cansclidated balance sheet if there ks a currently enforcestle legal right to offset the recognized
amounts 2nd there is an intention 1o settle on a net basis, tc realise the assets and settle the Hakilities simultanecusly.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash 2nd cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three manths or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Far the purpese of the Consalidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shart-term depaosits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as thay
ara considerad an integral part of the Group's cash management,

Cash disteihutinn to unit holders
The Group recognises a liability 1o make cash distributions te unit halders when the distribution is autherised and a legal obligation has been created, As per the InviT Regulations, 2 distribution
Is authaorised whe it fs approved by the Board of Directors of the | Acr ponding amount is ised directly in equity.

Eamings per unit

Basic esmings per unit is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to unit holders of the Trust (after deducting pref ividends and ble taxes if any) by the weighted
average number of Units outstanding durng the period. The weighted average number of units outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in 2
rights issue, split, and reverse split {consalidation of units) that have changed the number of units outstanding, without a correspanding change in resources.

For the purpase of calculating diluted earnings per unll, the nat profit or loss for the period attributable 10 unit holders of the Trust and the weighted average number of units outstanding
during the parfod are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential units.
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o) Recent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affalrs has notified C {Indian A ting Standards) gl Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for
annual periods beginning en or after Aprli 1, 2023, The Group spplied for the first-time these amendments,

L Definltion of tolnd ASB

The amendments clarffy the distinction between changes In accounting estimares and changes in acsounting policies and the correction of emors. [t has also been clarified how enpiiies s
measuremeant technigues and inputs to develop i The d had no impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements,

iL of A ing Policies - d tolnd AS1

The amendments aim to help entities provide aceounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for antities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with 2
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiallty in making about ing poikcy dise, The
amendments have had an impact on the Group's discliosures of accounting polieles, but not an the L, orp jon of any Items in the Group's consolidatad financial
stalwments.

iii. Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising fram a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12
The amendments narrow the scope of the initfal recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary

differences such as l=asas. The amendments had no impact on the Group's lidated i | stas
Apart from thess, fal and flals have been made to other Ind AS like Ind AS 101, Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 103, [nd A5 115 and Ind AS 2q,
For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notifisd any new or to the existing licable to the Group.

[This space Is mtentionally left biank]
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(3] Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Freehold land Plaf't e Furl_lrburz e D:ll'l:e Computers Total
Gross Block (at cost)

As at April 01, 2022 E - =, - * -
Additinn an azsount af acquisition |rafar note 32) 78.39 21,664.80 0.60 239 058 21,746.76
Addltians during the period - , . 003 = D.08
Dispasals during the period - - - - - 5
#s at March 31, 2023 78.39 21,664.80 0.60 248 0.58 21,746.85
Additions during the year 572 10.67 . 0.38 0.18 15.03
Disposals durlng the vear - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 84,11 21,675.47 0.50 .84 0.76 21,763.78
5 fated depr i

As at Aprii 01, 2022 - - - = - =
Depreciation for the period - 763.33 0.07 0.54 0.19 770,13
Dispasals durlng the pariad - - . o 5 -
As at March 31, 2023 - 76933 007 0.54 013 TI0.13
| Dapraciation for the yaar - 1,871.10 013 0.93 028 1,872.50
Disposals during the y=ar - = = - - =
As at March 31, 2024 - 2.540.43 0.20 153 0.47 2,542.53
Net Block

As at March 31, 2023 7839 20,895.47 0.53 1.94 0.33 20,976.72
As at March 31, 2024 B4.11 19,035.04 D.40 131 0.29 19,121.15

[This space s Intentionally left blank]
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{d) Other financial aisets

Non - Current
! Asat Asat
Pt March31,2026 | March 31,2023
{Unsecured, considersd good)
Sezurity depasits 583 737
Fiead depasit having remaining maturity of more tnan twelve manths 035 =
Totl 6.19 737
Curem
Unsacured, considered good)
billed revenue® 66936 65545
Interest acerued on fised deposit 038 016
Insurance proceeds recelvable 122 -
Fixed depasit having remaining maturity of less than twelve months 000 036
Othe receivables 065 065
Taotal 6E9.2L B5E.62
FUnbilled revenue Is the transmision charges for the kst muanms of perist and Incenthve blfled to transmission utfliies in the next manth
subsequent to year end.
{5} Inwvestments
Cartgat
particul Asat Asat
g March31,2028 | March31,2023
Inwestnents In mutual funds (valued ot Fair value througn Profis or Lats)
12301 Prusdential Liquid fund-Direzt Plan Growth - 933,045.53 Units (March 31, 2023 - 33347 53454
1.504,747.21 Units| 4
ABSL Liquid Fund-Growth-Direct Plan - 575.290.52 Units [March 31, 2023 - 900,428,32 Units) 21457 326,53
Axls Liguid Fund-Direct Growsh - 30,431.50 Units [March 31, 2023 - 120,484 92 Units) BLEB 30134
Kotak Liguid fund - Ditect growth - 8,573.37 Units (March 31, 2023 - NTi) 4184 =
ICIC Pruzentlal Liquid Fund - Direct Plan -Growth - overnight - Nil _ 103
[Mtarch 31, 2023 - 25,088 88 Units|
ABSL Overnight Fund-Srowth-Ofrect Plan- Nil (March 31, 2023 - 10,879.30 Unis) 1319
Taal 58155 1.305.62
walue of quated @ BEL56 1,305.42
A value of dl ki =
{6} Other assets
Currmnt
| Particut Asat Asat
LN March31,2024 | March3l, 2023
[Unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid expenses 2977 30,58
Adyances recoverable in cash or in kind [ 0is
Balances with governmentautharities 106 -
Total 3087 ESBE]

{7

Trade teielvabies

As at Asat

Rt March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

|Unsecured, cens 2ered food|
Trade recelvables - 20
Tutal . 12.03
No frace or other receakle 712 due fram cirectors ar ather cificers o the Graup either severally of (gintly with any ather persen. Nor any irade or other receivakle are due from firms ar privale
companies respectively in which any élrectar is 2 partrer, 2 clrector or 2 memeker,

Trade recelvables ate noh-lmerest bearing and are generally on terms of 60 g2ys.

See Nate 24(n) on credit risk of treuu recelvables, which explains how the Greup manages and mezsures credit guality of trade recelvakles that are peither past due nor impaired.

Trad ot March 31, 2004
Mere than 3 Total
Agting Sthrcule as ot 31 March 2034 L=y than & munths Gmenths -1year | 3-2years | 335 year
Lrerpuieg Trace Frrene o= corzdepes good n = =
Unzzpue Trads hich h: increase in credit rith - . - - - -
Lnetpuine Trace necenable — credit impained - N - - -
Czprtoc Trddy pequnabies - comsldered good - - - - -
Capuies Traze recaivebies — which have signifieant lncrease fn credil sk 4 E 0 - = =
=puiee Trzee ferrgbli = it lnglee = 9 2 = - =
Tenat . . - . -
Trade Recelvablos ageing schedille as at March 31, 2073
then 3
Ageing Schedule at at 31 March 2023 Lezs than 6 manths Gmonths-1year | 12yeans | 23 yars m:!m‘ Tou!
Unzirputed Trave Receivables - convigered good 1203 - - - . 12,03
d Trade bles — which have increase in credit ritk -
|unglsmated Trade recelvahle — rredis impalred -
Trad good . . -
dxrsted Trad heabl o P AT e T Bt A i i " g ~
12.03 - - . . 1203
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(8A)

(88)

Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars fsat ey
b March31,2024 | March31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current accounts 108.40 65.35
|Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 120.00 -
Total 228.40 65.35
Balances with bank on current account does not earn interest,
Bank balances other than disclosed in note BA above
particul As at As at

hers March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Dther bank balances
Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months # 21.24
Balancas with bank held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees and other 155.00 155.00
|commitmentsk#

155.00 176.24

Total

#Fixed deposits with banks of Rs. 155.00 million as at March 31, 2024 ( March 31, 2023: Rs. 155,00 million) and intarest accrued thereon of

Rs. Nil are lien marked with Catalyst Trusteeship Limited (debenture trustee).

Short-term daposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depanding on the immediate cash requirements of

the trust, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

[This space is intentionally left blank)
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(9) Unit capital
Reconciliation of units putstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars No. of units in million Amount Nn':“:lll';::s 0 Amount
At the beginning of the year 158.00 15,624.79 - =
Add : Issued during the year - - 158.00 15,800.00
Less: Isstte expenses (refer note (b} below) = £ = [175.21)
Outstanding at the end of the year 158.00 15,624.79 158.00 15,624.79

Note:

{a) Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has made an initial issue of 75,000,000 units, for cash at 2 price of Rs 100.00 per unit, aggregating to Rs. 7500 Million to
the eligible unitholders (as defined in the Final Placement Memorandum) (the “lssue”) on private placement basis, in accordance with the Secyrities and
Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 Including the circulars and guidelines issued thereunder. The Issue opened on
November 10, 2022 and closed on November 11,2022. Additionally, pursuant to the share purchase agreement with Edelweiss infrastructure Yield Plus Trust
(“EIYP"), EIYP was allottad 83,000,000 units of Anzen.

The InvIT Committee of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limitad (Investment Manager of Anzen), considered and approved allotment of 158,000,000 units
to the eligible unitholders of Anzen on November 11, 2022,

(b) Issue expenses of Rs.175.21 Million Incurred in connection with issue of units have been reduced from the Unitholders capital in accordance with Ind AS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation

(c) Terms/Rights attached to the Units

(1} The Trust has only one class of Units, Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of Unit Is entitled to one vote per unit.
The Unitholders have the right to recaive at least 50% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in every financial year in accordance with
the InvIT Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
Units held by the Unitholders, The Trust declares and pays distributions in Indian Rupees.

Under the provisions of the InvIT Regulations, the Trust is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 0% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the
Trust for each financial year. Accordingly, Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation to pay cash to the Unitholders. Thus, In accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation, the Unit Capital contains a liability element which should have been classified and treated
accordingly. However, the SEBI Circulars (SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 issued under the InviT Repulations, and Section H of
Chapter 3 to the SEBI Circular dated July 06, 2023 dealing with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements, require
the Unit Capital in entirety to be presented/classified as “Equity”, which s at variance from the requirements of Ind AS 32, In order to comply with the
aforesaid SEBI requirements, the Trust has presented unit capital as equity in these financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as
equity, any distributions to Unitholders are also being presented In the Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity when the distributions are approved by
the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager.

(i) A Unitholder has no equitable or proprietary interest in the projects of the Trustand is not entitled to any share in the transfer of the projects (or any part
thereof) or any Interest in the projects (or any part thereof] of the Trust. A Unithalder’s right s limited to the right to require due administration of the Trust
in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed and the Investment Management Agreement.

{d) Details of Unitholders holding more than 5% units in the Trust
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars " No. of unitsin -
No. of units in million % halding e % halding
million

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 88,40 55.85% 93.80 59.37%
Sekura Energy Private Limited 23.80 15.06% 23.80 15.06%
Larsen & Toubra Limited 15.40 9,75% 15,20 9.62%

127.60 80.76% 132,80 84,05%

The Trust has acquired the entire equity share capital of Darbhanga - Motlhari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL) and NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission
Limited ('NRSS') from Edelwelss Infrastructure Yield Flus ('EIYP') pursuant to share purchase sgreement dated on Navemnber 01, 2022 and subsequent closing
on November 11, 2022. The Trust issued its units amounting te Rs. 4,700 million and Rs. 3,600 million ta EIYP In exchanige of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and
NRSS respectively.

{e) The Trust has not allotted any fully paid up units by way of bonus units nar has it bought back any class of units from the date of incorporation till the
balance sheet date.

(10) Other equity

Particulars S fut

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Retained Earnings/ (Accumulated deficit)
Balance as at the beginning of the year (515.19) .
Loss for the year (297.27) {319.24)
Other comprehensive income (0.08) {0.03}
Less: Distribution to Unit Holders {1.543.66) (155.92)
Closing balance (2,356.20) (515.18)
Total {2.356.20) (515.19)

Retalned earnings are the profits earned by the Trust till date, less distribution paid to unitholders, if any.
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(11)

(a)

(b)

Borrowings
Non - current:

As at As at

Particulars Effective Interest Rate March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Borrowings at amortised cost
A. Secured

B.019% Series A Non convertible debentures 8.47% 4,467.52 4,450,33
(4,500 debentures of Rs,1,000,000 each fully paid up) **
8,34% Series B Non convertible debentures 8.70%| 2,974.29 2,965.91
(3,000 debentures of Rs.1,000,000 each fully paid up) **

Less: current maturities of debentures E =
7,441.81 7.416.24

**Net of ancillary borrowing costs amounting to Rs. 58.19 million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 83.76 miliion) for Series A and Series B.

Aggregate non-current borrowings 7,441.81 7,416.24
Aggregate current borrowings - )
Terms of borrowings

On December 01, 2022 the Trust has issued and allotted 7,500 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of face value of
Rs. 1,000,000 each for an aggregate consideration of Rs. 7,500 million on private placement basis,

Repayment schedule of NCD

Particulars Amount Maturity date
Series A 4,500.00 01-12-25
Series B 3,000.00 01-12-27
Security

(i) a first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the Issuer’s current assets and other assets (excluding DSR and DSRA), both present

and future, including: (i) all the recelvables, right, title, intarest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Issuer in, to and under all Lhe
loans and advances extended by the Issuer to the SPVs and HoldCol(s), present and future (collectively, the “lssuer Loans"}; (i} the receivables,
right, title and interest and benefits of the Issuer in, ta and under all the financing agreements, deeds, documents and agreements or any
other instruments (both present and future) which are now executed or may hereafter be executed by the Issuer with respect to the Issuer
Leans; Step in rights on the Loans shall be with the Common security Trustee. (i) all bank accounts of the Issuer, including but not fimited to
the Escrow Account and the Sub-Accounts (including Cash Trap Sub Account) (if any) (excluding the distribution accaunt and the accounts
opened ta meet the debt service reserve requirements in respect of any Additional Debt) or any accounts in substitution thereof that may be
cpened in accardance with the Debt Securities Documents, and in all funds from time to time deposited therein (including the reserves), all
designated account opened with designated banks and the Permitted Investments or other securities representing all amourits credited ta the
Escrow Account;

{ii) a first and exclusive charge on the DSR and DSRA to be created in favour of the Camman Security Trustee for benefit of Debt Securities under

this Deed, and all amounts lying therein;

{iii) @ first pari passu pledge over 100% (one hundred percent} of the equity share capital, compulsarily convertible debentures, aptionally

convertible debentures, non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer In all the Project SPVs.

(iv) pari passu pledge aver unencumbered equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optianally convertible debentures, non-

(c)

convertible debentures and securities held by the lssuer and Holdcal(s) in 2ll the Other SPVs and Holdcals) (as applicable).

Interest
Interst shall accrue at the end of every quarter and shall be payable on the last date of each quarter.
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(2

(13}

The principal ameunt and the interest due thereen remaining unpaid to any suppller as at the end of each accounting year
Principgal amoupt due ta micre and small enterprises
Interest due cn above

The ameunt af interest paid by the buyer interms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2066 2lang with the ameunts of the peyment made to the
supglier beyond the appointed day during each sccounting year

‘The amount of interest éue and payable for the period of delay In making payment {which have been pald but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,
The amaunt of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accaunting year

The amaunt of further interest ining due and payakl inthe ding years, untll such date when the interest dues as abave are actually paid to
the small erterprise for the purpose of disall a5 i diture under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

As ot Asar
particulsrs March31, 2028 March 31, 2023
Non-current :
Provision for employee banefits
Gratuity {refer note 31) 178 131
Compensated absences 0585 058
Total 234 189
Asat Asat
Parikculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Current:
Provision for employes benefits
Gratuity (refer nate 31) 0.2 0,16
Compensaled alsenes .50 a7
Totl 0.71 0.63
Trade payables
T Asat Asat
Farbcy March 31, 2028 March 3¢, 2023
Trade payables
Total outstanding duss of micro enterprises and small enterprises 012 4.72
Tota! outstanding dues of creditars ather than misre enterprises and small 26.48 58.42
anterprises
25.60 53.14 ¥
Trade payables
-to related parties T35 4265
-to others 18.85 20.49
2560 63.18
Trade payshies ageing schedule:
for following yeurs from the date of
Particolars Total
More than
Lesxthan 1 year 1-2years Z-Ayears e
As at March 31, 2024
Totai cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 012 - - - o2z
Total outstanding duss of creditors ather than micra enterprises and small anterprises 2617 0,08 o2 . 2648
Disputed dues of micrs and small enterprises . =
dues of creditors other than micra enterprises and small enterpries i . a a5 -
Total 26.29 o3 [F>1 - 25,50
Az at March 31, 2023
Total Ing dues of mi small 472 = - - 472
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro entarprises and small enterprises 58,19 o - ooz 5042
d dues of micre and small epterprises - - - - -
Osputed dues of credisrz ather then micre and small nterprises . - = - -
Tatal HLE1 o - [[Fi"3 5414
Details of dues to Micro and Small ites under the Micro, Small and : | Act, 2005 (MSMED Act) :
Asat Asat
Byt Wiarch 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
012 4,72

Trace payables ave not- interest bearing and are normally seiticn on 30-30 days terma.
Far explanaticn an the Group's risk management gellcles, refer note 74

. [This space is ntentionally left klank]
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{13) oOtherfinancial liabilities

: As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Payable to related parties (refer note 29) 58.61 528.93
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.67 1.67
Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment 0.19 0.28
Payable to employees 2.05 211
63.52 632.99
{15) Other current liabilities
- As at As at
warsculam March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Advance from customer 105.15 1.55
Statutory dues 17.68 30.20
126.88 31.75

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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{18) from contracts with customers
particul Year ended Yearended
e March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income from transmission charges 241023 930.64
Income from operation and maintenance 16.12 6.05 |
2,426.41 936.69

Revenue from contracis with customers comprises of revenue from power transmission services rendered in India to Long Term Transmission
Customers (LTTCs) pursuant to the respective Transmission Services Agreemants (TSAs) executed by the respective SPVs with LTTCs, The TShs are
exacuted for a period of 35 years arid have fixed tariff charges as approved by CERC (except some incentives/penaltias relating to transmission assets
availabilities), Under the TSAs, the Group's performance obligation is to provide powar transmission services. The Group Is requirad to ensure that the
transmission assets meet the minimum availability criteria under the respective TSAs failing which could result in certain disincentives/penalties. Tha
perfofmance obligation is satisfied over-time as the customers receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group's' performance as the Group
perform. The payment is generally due within 60 days upon receipt of quarterly invoice by the customer. The Group receives payments as per the
pooling arrangements spacified under the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Sharing of Inter State Transmission Charges and Losses)
Regulations ("Pooling Regulations’). In the Point of Connection (PoC) mechanism, the transmission charges to be recovered from the entire system are
allocated between users based on their location in the grid. Under the PoC mechanism, all the charges collectad by the Central Transmission Utility
(i.e. Power. Grid Corporation of India Limited) from LTTCs are disbursed pro-rata to all Transmission Service Providers from the pool in proportion of
the respective billed amount.

Applying the practical expedient as givan in ind AS 115, the Group has not disclosed the remaining performance abligation related disclosures since
the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performanca completed to date.

[a) Disagm dr information
. Year ended Year ended
e March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Income from transmission charges 2,410.29 930.54
Income from operation and malntenance 16.12 6.05
Total 2,426,481 936,69
(b} Assets and liabilities related to contracts with
Particular: Asat As at
ars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivable - 12.03
Unbilled revenue E60.36 655.45
Contract liabilities 108,19 1.55
Trade raceivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 60 days. Contract [iabilities include advances
¢} Project wise break up of v fram contracts with
Particulars o Aat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Darbhanga - Matiharl Transmission Company Limited 1,410.70 544.51
NRSS XXXl (B) Transmission Limited 1,015.71 392.18
Tatal 2,426.41 936.69
(d] Recondling the of recognised in the of profit and loss with the contracted price
Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue as per contracted price 2,426.02 936.69
Add : Surcharge 13,56 -l
Less : Rebate (13.17) T
2,426.41 936.69
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(e}  Reconciliation of contract assets and liabilities

scul Year ended Year ended
Pasticutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance
Unbilled revenue 655.45
Trade receivable 12.03] 4
Contract liabilities {1.55) =
{A) 665.93 =
Amounts billed to customers (655.45) 12,03
Power transmission services provided, but remaining unbilled as at year end 660.36 655.45
Collection from customer (12.03) J
Advance received fram customer adjusted against billing 1.55
Advance received from customer (105.18) (1.55)
(8} {114.76) 665.93
Closing balance
Unbilled revenue 660.36 655.45
Trade receivable - 12.03
Contract liabilities (109.13) [1.55)
{A+8) 551.17 665.93
[17) Employee benefit expense
A Year ended Year ended
sriiliars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 16.96 5.89
Gratuity expenses (refer note 31) 0.42 0.16
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31) 0.80 0.28
Staff welfare expenses 1.22 0.36
19.40 6.79
(18) Finance costs
P Year ended Year ended
23 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest an
Secured Non-convertible debentures 637.47 439.20
Interest an late payment of tax 0.40 -
637.87 439,20
(18) Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rates and taxes 3.66 1.05
Membership charges 0.87 0.27
Power and fuel 5.88 1.69
Travelling and conveyance expenses 5.44 1.77
Rent (Expense relating to leases of low-value assets) 0.53 0.20
Miscellaneous expenses 2.49 2.84
18.87 7.82

(a) Pursuant to the amended Investment Management Agreement dated February 27, 2024, Investment Manzger is entitled to fees of Rs. 55 million per
annum plus Goods and Service tax at rate as applicable which Is allocated to each project SPV equally. Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended March 31, 2024 includes amount of Rs. 64.90 Million (March 31, 2023: Rs.24.18 million) towards Investment Manager Fees. There are
na changes during the year in the methodology for computation of fees paid to Investment Manager.

{b) Pursuant to the Project Implementation and Management Agreement dated November 1, 2022, Project Manager is entitled to fees @ 15% of gross
operation and maintenance expenses (excluding insurance and statutary costs) incurred by each SPV per annum plus Goods and Service tax at rate as
applicable effective from November 11, 2022. Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 includes amount of Rs
20.66 Million (March 31, 2023: Rs.10.53 million) towards Project Manager fees. There are no changes during the year In the methodology for

computation of fees paid to Project Manager.
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(20) Capital and other commitments

[a) Capital Commitments

The Group has no capital commitments as on March 31, 2024 [March 31, 2023: Nil).

[b) Other Commitments

The Group has entered into transmission services agreements (TSA) with long term transmission customers for the period of 35 (thirty five} years pursuant o which the
Group have committed to transmit power of contracted capacity and ensure minimum availability of transmission line over the period of TSA. The TSA contains provision

for penalties in case of certain defaults.

(21} Contingent liabilities
baFiaiiare Asat Asat
" March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other matters 78.43 78.43
Total 78.43 78.43

During the financial year 2016 17, land owners have filed a case with the District Court, Ludhiana, Punjab towards compensation amounting to INR 61.65 million (March 31,

2023:INR 61.65 million) for the value of land over which the transmission line is passing. The Group is of the view that required amount of compensation to thase
landowners have already been paid and no further compensatipn Is payable.

=t

. During the financial year 2020-21, land owners have filed a case with the Civil Court, Pehowa, Haryana towards compensation amounting to INR 2 million (March 31,

2023:INR 2 million) for costs incurred on account of transmission line passing. The Group is of the view that required amount of compensation to these landowners have
already been paid and no further compensation is payable,
fii. During the financial year FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20, Power Grid Corporation of India Limited claimed recovery of Interest During Construction ("IDC7), Incidental Expansas
During Construction (“IEDC”) and transmission charges respectively amounting to INR 14.78 million (March 31, 2023:INR 14.78 million) on account of delay in
commissioning of transmissian lines by the Group. The Group is of the view that the delay in commissioning of transmission lines was due to force majeure avents which
were beyond the control of the Group. The Central Electricity Regulatory Commission concluded in another matter through order dated 29/03/2015 passed in Patition No.
185/MP/2017 that delay In commissioning was not due to reasons attributable to the Group.
The outcome of the all above claims are uncertain and accordingly, disclosed as contingent liabilities.

(22) Financial Instruments by category

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments as of March 31, 2024 :

Fair value through Fatr valus thircigh
Particulars Amaortised cost other comprehensive | Total carrying value Total fair value
profitand loss
Income
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 228.40 - - 228.40 228.40
Investments in mutual funds - 681.56 - 68156 £81.56
Other bank balances 155.00 = - 155.00 155,00
Other financial assets 695.40 - - 695.40 695.40
Total 1,078.80 631.56 - 1,760.36 1,760.36
Financial liabilities
Borrawings 744181 - - 7441.81 7,466.44
Trade payables 26.60 - - 26.60 26.60
Cther financlal lizbilities 63.52 & - 63.52 63,52
Total 7,531.93 e - 7,531.93 7,556.56

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value

of the Trust's financial instruments as of March

31,2023:

. Fair value thraugh Fa@ vauw thrawst H
Particulars Amartised cost other comprehensive | Total carryingvalue | Total fair value
prafitand loss
Income
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents £5.35 . - 65.35 65.35
Investments in mutual funds - 1,306.42 - 1,306.42 1,306.42
Other bank belances 176.24 = = 170,24 176.24
Trade receivables 12.03 < - 12.03 12.03
Other financial assets 663.99 ” . 663.99 663.99
Total 917.61 1,306.42 - 2,225.03 2,224.03
Financial liabilities
Horrowings 7,416.24 2 = 7.416.24 7,394.03
Trade payables 63.14 - . 63.14 63,14
Other financial liabilities 632.99 2 = 632.99 532.99
Total 8,112.37 : 5 8,112.37 | 53 5:090.16
Carrying values of trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their fair values. W
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(23) Fair value hierarchy

The follawing tabla prozents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabllitiss as of

particulars Fair value at end of the reporting year using
Quoted prices in Significant Significant

active markets [Level 1) L ble inputs b ble inputs

[Level 2) [Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value
March 31, 2024

Quioted investmants - Investment in mutual funds 58156 .
March 31, 2023
Quotsd - |nvestmant in mutual funds 1,306.42 - -
Asset for which fair value disclosures are given
March 31, 2024
Property, plant and et
March 31, 2023
Property, plant and t* - - 22,560.88
Liabilities for which fair value disclosures are given
March 31, 2024

Borrowings - 7,456.44 -
March 31, 2023
Borrowings - 7,394.03 -

. - 1245216

There have been no transfersamong Level 1, Leve| 2 and Level 3.
Investment in mutual funds though unlistad, are quotsd an recognised stock exchanges at their previous day NAVS which s the quote for the day.

*Statement of net asset at fair value and statement of tokal returns at falr value require disclosures regarding fair value of asssts (liabilities at considerad at book values). Sinc the
fair values of assets other than property, plant and aguipment approximate their book valuas, hence only property, plant and agquipment has besn disclosed above.,

The Trust is required to pressnt the Statsment of total assets at fair value and Statement of total returns at fair value as per SEBI Master circular No. SEBI/HD/DDH5-PoD-

2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated 05 July 2023 as a part of these financial stat - Refer 5t of Net assets at fairvalue and Statement of Total Returns at fair value.

The inpuls L Lhe valuation models for computztion of fair value of transmission assets for the above mentioned statements are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is nat feasible, a degres of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judg include considerations of inputs such as WACC, Tax rates, Inflation rates,
el

The significant unobservable inputs used |n the fair value measursment required for disclosures categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2024 are as shown below:

Description of significant uncbservable inputs to valuation:

pegpticanCurisenbils opiits Input for Input far Sensitivity of input to Increase /(decrease) in fair value
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 the fair value March 31, 2098 March 31, 203
WACC 8,02% ta B.07% 7.50% to 8.55% 0.50% (1,197.50) {1,204.00)
-0.50% 134868 135500
Tax rate {normal tax and MAT) MAT - 17.47% MAT - 17.47% 2.00% (79.57) (402.00)
Narmal tax- 25.17% Normal tax - 25.17% -2.00% 5545 385.00
Inflaticn rate for expenses 1.5% tc 5% 2.5% ta 5% 20.00% (546.50) (2ic.02)
-20.00%: 520.e5 184.42

{24) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Greup's princlpal financlal lizhilities comprise barrowings, trade and cther payables and cther financial lizbilities. The main purpase of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Group's operaticns. The Group's principal finzncis| assets include investments, loans, trade receivebles, cesh and short-term deposits and cther financial 2sset= that derive directly
fram its cperstions.

The Group |s exposed to market risk, eredit risk snd liquidity risk, The b t ger oversees the management of these risks, The mansgemerit reviews and agrees pelicies
for managing each of these risks, which are summarised belaw.

The Risk Marisgement policies of the Group sre established 10 idantify 2nd analyse the risks faced by the Group, 1o set appropriate risk limits and contrels and to meniter risks and
adherence to limits. Risk pelicies snd are i regularly to reflect changes in market canditions and the Group's activities.

Management has avétall responsibllity fer the estzblishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framewaork.

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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(a) Credit risk on financial assets

(b)

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obllgations under a finandial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other finangial instruments. As
at March 31, 2024 the credit risk is considered |low since substantial transactions of the group are with its subsidiaries.

The Group through its subsidiaries is engaged in transmission business under BOOM (Bulid, Own, Operate and Maintain) model and currently derive its ravenye primarily
from BOOM contracts with long term transmission customers ('LTTC'). Being transmission licensee, the Group receives payments as per the Pooling arrangements
specified under the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission {Sharing of Inter State Transmission Charges and Losses) Regulations, 2010 (‘Pooling Regulations'). In the
PoC method, the transmission charges to be recovered from the entire system are allocated between users based on their location in the grid, Under the PoC
mechanism, all the charges collected by the Central Transmission Utility ('CTU') from LTTC's are disbursed pro-rata to all Transmission Service Providers {"TsPs’) from the
pool in proportion of the respective billed amount. Due to this, the TSPs are shielded against any potential default by a particular customer. If a panticular customer
delays or defaults, the delay or shortfall is prorated amongst all the TSPs, Based on past history of payments, payments due have always been paid and there have been
no write-off's for due amounts.

Due to the payment mechanism explained above as well as due to no histary of any write-off's of payments which were due, the Group has not considered any expected
Credit risk from balances deposited/invested with banks as well as investments made in mutual funds, is managed by the Group's senior management in accordance
with the Group's Treasury policy approved by the Board of Directors. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within limits
assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty limits are reviewed by the top management on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to
approval of the Board of Directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential
failure to make payments. Based on this policy, the Group does not foresee any risk on account of credit losses, either in the scheduled commercial bank deposits which
are made with AA+ rated banks and also in regard to mutual funds which is primarily debt oriented funds. No loss allowances have been prowvided for any trade
receivables, or other receivables from financing activities like cash and bank deposits, mutual funds and other similar deposits. Also, there have been no modifications in
contractual cash flows on financial assets,

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheat as at March 31, 2024 is the carrying amounts of Investments, Trade Recsivables,
Cash and bank balances and Dther Assets as disclosed in Note 5, 7, B, and 4 respectively. However, the credit risk is low due to reasons mentioned above.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk Include loans and borrowings and
investments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Trust's
borrowings are at fixed rate, hence the Trust is not exposed to Interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes In foreign exchange rates. The Trust did not have
any exposure in foreign currency as at March 31, 2024.

Equity price risk

The Trust's investments in equity shares of subsidiaries are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of those investments. Reports
on the equity portfolio are submitted to the senior management on a regular basis. The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager reviews and approves all equity
Investment decisions. The Trust did not have any exposure of equity price risk as at March 31, 2024,

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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{=)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity rish = tha rizk that the Graup may difticulty in ing itz presant and future ably iatad wizh fi | fibilities that are required to be settley by dellvering

cash or anather financial aszet. The Trust's ebjective (s to, at all Hmes malntaln optimum levels slliquidity to meet its cash and ool 1 ot g The Graup ires fundz bath for share

tarm enarations| nueds az well as for leng term invertmant programs malnly in growth prajects. The Group elasely maniars its lquidity positien and dealoys @ robist cash management

system. It 2ims to minimise these risks by genemting cuffizient zash flows from it current wehich In add ta the avallable sach and cash equivalents, liquid | and

suffiziont commyttad fund facilitiaz, will provide Naufdioy.

The liguidity risk ks managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities, The credit year taken to settle trade payables s about 30 days. The other payables are

with short tarm durations. The camying are d to be ble approimation of falr value. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial labilites

based on [ undi d

|Particulars On demand Less than 3 months | 3 manths to 1 year 1year to 5 years Mare than 5 years Total

As at March 31,2029

Non convertible debentures (Seeured) - - - 744181 - 7.441 61

Trade payables - 26.60 = = - 26.60

Other financial labillties = 53.52 = = - 6352

Interes: on bormwings s 15183 457,56 92157 2 153n8s
- 24195 457.56 B.363.38 = 9,062.39

As at March 31, 2023

Naon convertible debantures (Secured) - - - 7.816.24 = 7,416.24

Trade payables - B3.14 - - - 63.14

Dther financial llabilities - 51118 12181 - = 632,59

Interest on borrowings - 15223 459.66 1.530.96 = 2.142.35
5 72656 581.47 .947.20 - 10,255.23 |

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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d financial st

(25) Capital management

for the year ended March 31, 2024

Far the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes {ssued unit capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the unit holders of the
Trust. Tha primary objective of the Trust's capital management is to ensure that It maintains a strong cradit rating and healthy eapital ratios in order ¢g support
its business and maximise unitholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustmeants to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of thea financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capltal structure, the Trust may adjust the distribution to unitholders [subject to the provisions of IvIT regulations which
require distribution of at least 90% of the nat distributable cash flows of the Trust to unit holders), return capital to unitholders or issue new units. Tha Trust
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which Is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Trust's policy is to keep the gearing ratio optimum. The Trust
includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances excluding

discantinued operations.

Partlculars A Azt
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Barrowings T.441.B1 7.416.24
Trade Payables 26,60 63.14
Other financial liabilities 63.52 532.83
Less: Cash and other bank balances (383.401 (241.59)
Net debt [A] 7.148.53 7.870.78
Unit capital 15,624.79 15,624.79
Other eguity {2.355.20) {515.19)
Total equity capital [B] 13.258.59 15,105.60
Capital and net debt [C=A+8] 20.417.12 22,980.38
Gearing ratio (33) [A/C) 0.35 0.34

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets fnancial covenants attached
to the interast-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. There have been no breaches In the financial covenants of the Nen

convertibie debenturas.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or pracesses for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024,

(26) Tax expense

The major components of income tax expense for the year are:
Profit or loss section

- Year ended Year ended
Particulars
. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Currint income tax:

Current income o chage 15.13 {37 B4)
Adiusiments In respect of current incoma taa of pravisus year (0.05) -
Deferred tax:

NAT cradit antitlement for current yoar = B
| Relating te origination snd reversal of temporary differences 4 =
Incame tox expenze reparied in the m al prafit or loss 15.08 37.84)

The reconciliation b the provisicn of i 1ax and puted by applying the Indian statutory income tax rate to profit before tax isas
follows:
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loss before tax (282.19) (357.08]
Enacted income tax rate in India 2517% 25.17%
Computed expected tax (71.03) (89.88)
Effect of:
Irmpact of exemption u/s 10(23FC) of the Income Tax Act, 1561 available to the Trust
Nen recognitian of deferred tax on unabsorbed depreciation and other timing differences 86,16 5204
Adjustiment of tax relating to earlier pericds (0.05) -
Incame tax se recogrised in the st of profit and loss 15.08
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(27) Defesred Tax Liability {net)

(28}

Asat As at
Partictbees March 31, 2024 Morch 31, 2023
Deferred Tax Assets
Tax losses 251391 2,29238
Gratuity payable 0.58 0.43
Leave encashment payable 0.30 031
Total 2,514.75 2,293.12
Defarred Tax Liablilities
Property, plant and equipment : impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation for 1,548.78 1,567.11
Ancillary borrowing cost = -
Tatal 1,548.73 1,567.11
Nat deferred tax assat ised [DTA restricted to the extent of DTL) - -

Far the computation of deferred tax assets/liabilities, the Group has not considered tax holiday avallable under the Income Tax Act. The manag2ment based on
estimated tash flow workings, belisves that since there will be losses in the inltial years of the SPVs, no benefit under the Income tax Act would accrue to in

respect of the tax will re-ass
depreciation can be carriad forward indefinitely.

Earnings per unit

this pusition at each balance shest date. Tax losses represents unabsorbed depreciation. Unabsarbed

Basic EPU ampunts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during

the year,

Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weightad average number of units outstanding during
the year plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of al| the dilutive potential units into unit capital.

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loss after tax for caltulating basic and diluted earnings per unit attributagie to unitholders (Rs. million) (297.27) 1315.24)
Weighted average number of units in calculating basic and diluted sarnings per unit (o, in million) 158,00 51.04
Face value per unit (In Rs.} 100 g
Basic and diluted carnings prar unit {In Fs.) (1.88) (5.23)

[This space is intentionally left Blank]
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{29) Related Party Disclosures

a)

b)

b)

<)

i

iii)

i)

List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Entity with control over the Trust
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus (EIYP)

Entity with significant influence over the Trust

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager
Edelwaiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Ultimate holding company of ERAML

List of related parties as per Regulation 2{1)(zv) of the InvIT Regulations

Parties of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project manager

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager

Axis Trustea Services Limited (ATSL) - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Promoters of the parties to specified in (a) abova

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited (w.e.f. 29 March 2023)
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited (upto 28 March 2023)
Axis Bank Limited

Directors of the parties specified in {a) above
Directors of SEPL

Vijayanand Semletty (w.e.f. 2 August 2023)
Avinash Prabhakar Rao (upta 2 August 2023)
Sushant Sujir Nayak

Tharuvai Venugopal Rangaswami

Directors of ERAML

Venkatchalam Ramaswamy

Subahoo Chardia

Sunil Mitra

Prabhakar Panda (upto 1 April 2023)
Ranjita Deo

Shiva Kumar

Balz C Deshpande (w.e.f. 1 April 2023)
Nupur Gzrg (w.e.f. 23 May 2023)

Key Managerial Personnel of ERAML

Ranjita Deo (Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer)
Vaibhav Doshi (Chief Financial Officer) (w.ef. 1 February 2023)
Jalpz Parekh (Company Secretary)

Directors of ATSL

Deepa Rath

Prashant Ramrao loshi {w.e.f. 16 January 2024)
Sumit Bali (w.e.f. 16 January 2024)

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya (upto 15 lanuary 2024)
Ganesh Sankaran (upto 15 January 2024)

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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il Rulated porty transactions:
Partlculars
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Issue of units
! Infrastructure Yield Plus - 8,332.00
Sekura Enargy Private Limited - 2.330.00
Auls Bank Limited - 500,00
Issue of NCD
Awis Bank Limitad - 3,000.00
Imterest income an investment in fixed deposits
Aufs Bank Limited 1256 843
Inwestmenl in fined deoosils
fuls Bank Limited 15171 193595
Redemotion of fixed deposits
Auis Bank Umited 5232 445006
|nterest ekpense on NCD
Az Bank Limited 23073 79.56
Project Impl ation and M
Sekurn Energy Private Limited 20.56 10,53
Shared service cost
Sukuti Eneogy Private Limited 2360 18,83
Unit placement fess
Edelwelss Financial Services Lmitad - 11.09
Armnger fiees for NCD faciiities
i Bank Limited - .82
Distribution to unit holders
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 908.10 11651
Seturs Energy Private Limited 23253 2851
Axis Bank Limited 1412 387
Reimbursement of expenses from
sl Bank Limitad 408 =
Edrivwens Infrasiusturs Yield Plus 131 .
Reimbursement of expensas to
Salura Energy Private Umited 158 102.45
Evaiweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited - 0.05
#wimash Prabhakar Rac - o0.07
|Investment management fees
Edelweiss Real Assels Managers Limited 64,90 2418
Trustee fees
At Trustee Services Limited 071 0.26
V. Related party bzlances:
Asat Asat
Farticulzrs March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
R et £ 1ot | foregtinbind i Bty
Tradc payables
Lehurs Energy Private Limited {31.55}
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited I:lE-EJ'I
Fais Trustee Services Limited 10.26)
Fealweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited - (a.as)
Ealances with banks in current accounts
Axis Bank Limited 48.92 3107
Fixed deposits
Auis Bank Limited 28500 176.24
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Axis Bank Limited 0.63 011
Other financial abilities
Edetwelsz Infrastructure Yield Plus |5B.51) (628.53)
Infurest accrued but not due on borrowings
fiaiy Bank Limited 10.66) |8.66)
Quistanding NCD
Ry Bark Limite 13.000.001 t3.c0n.00)|
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Details in respect of related party transactions involving acquisition of InvIT assets as required by Para 4.6.6 of Chapter 4 of SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated 06 July 2023 as amended including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder ("SEgg| Circulars") are as
follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2024:
No acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2024.

For the year ended March 31, 2023;

Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has acquired Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission Limited
('NRSS') from Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus ('EIYP') pursuant to share purchase agreement dated on 1 November 2022 and subsequent closing on 11
November 2022. The Trust issued its units amounting to INR 4,700 million and INR 3,600 million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NRSS

respectively.

Summary of valuation report

Particulars DMTCL NRSS

Enterprise value as at 30 June 2022 12,507.00 9,897.00
Method of valuation Discounted Cash Flow Discounted Cash Flow
Discount rate (WACC) 8.45% 8.24%

Enterprise value as disclosed above are based solely on the fair valuation report dated 18 October 2022 of the independent valuer appointed by the Investment
manager under the InvIT Regulations.

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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{30) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

(a)

(b)

(&)

(c)

(d)

The preparation of the Trust’s Consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, neertainty
about these jtions and esti could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabllities

affected in future years.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies, management has made the following judgameants, which have the most significant effact on

the amounts recognised in the financial statements,

Applicability of Appendix D - Service Concession Arrangements of Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group through Its subsidiaries acts as a transmission licensee under the Electricity Act, 2003 holding valid licenses for 25 years. The subsidiaries
have entered into Transmission Services Agreements ("TSA") with Long Term Transmission Customers ("LTTC") through a tariff based bidding process to
Build, Own, Operate and Maintain {"BOOM") the transmission Infrastructure for a period 35 years. The management of the Company is of the view that
the grantor as defined under Appendix D of Ind AS 115 (“Appendix D") requires transmission licensee to obtain various approvals under the regulatory
framework to conduct its operations both during the period of the license as well as at the end of the license period. However, in the view of
management, the grantor’s Involvement and approvals are to protect public interest and are not intended to contraol, through ownership, beneflcial
entitlement or otherwise, any significant residual interest In the transmission infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement. Accordingly,
‘management is of the viéw that Appendix D to Ind AS 115 is not applicable ta the Group.

Acquisition of Transmission 5PVs classified as asset acquisitions

The Group acquires operational transmission SPVs. The purchase consideration primarily pertains to the fair value of the transmission assets, All such
assets are operational assets with fixed tariff revenues under the Transmission Services Agreements (TSAs) for 35 years. The only key activity for these
5PVs is the maintenance of the transmission assets which is outsourced to third parties. There are few employees in these entities and no other
significant processes are performed for earning tariff revenues.

Based on evaluation of the above fact pattern vis-a-vis the guidance on definition of business under Ind AS and also keeping in view the relevant
guidance on similar fact pattern available under accounting standards applicable in other jurisdictions, the management has classified the acquisition
of transmission 5PV as asset acquisition.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Trust based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Trust. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Fair valuation and disclosures

SEBI Circulars issued under the InvIT Regulations require disclosures relating to net assets at fair value and total returns at fair value. In estimating the
fair value of investments in subsidiaries (which constitute substantial portion of the net assels), the Trust engages independent qualified external
valuers to perform the valuation. The management works closely with the valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The management reports the valuation report and findings to the Board of the Investment Manager quarterly to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the transmission projects. The Inputs to the valuation models are taken from chservahle markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing falr values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as WACC, Tax
rates, Inflation rates, etc. Changes in assumpticns about these factors could affect the fzir value.

Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial
ticn invalves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the

discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, = defined benefit
obligatian is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptians are reviewed at each reporting date.
Further details about gratuity obligation are glven in Note 31.

Impairment of nan-financial assets

Non-financial assets of the Trust primarily comprise of property, plant and equipment. The provision for impairment/(reversal) of impairment of
property, plant & equipment and service concession receivable is made based on the difference between the carrylng amounts and the recoverable
amounts. The recoverable amount of the property, plant & equipment and service coricession receivable has been computed by external Independent
valuation

experts based on value in use calculation for the underlying projects [based on discounted cash flow madel). On a periodic basis, according to the
recoverahle amaunts of individual portfolio assets computed by the valuation experts, the Trust tests impairment on the amounts invested in the
respective subsidiary companies. The valuation exercise so carried out considers various factors including cash flow projections, changes in interest
rates, discount rates, risk premium for market conditions. Based on the valuatian exercise sa carried out, there is no impairment for the year ended
March 31, 2024. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the underlying projects are disclosed and further explained in

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement Is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. For the calculation of deferred tax assets/liabilities, the
Trust has not considered tax holiday available under the Income Tax Act. The management based on estimated cash flow werkings fer
believes that since there will be losses in the initial years of the SPVs, no benefit under the Income tax Act would accrue to thase SPVs
tax heliday.
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(31) pisclosures for Employee Benefits
a. Defined benefit plan - gratuity
The Trust has a defined benefit plan {Gratuity) for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act,
employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the memper's length of
service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last
drawn) for each completed year of service as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The said gratuity plan is unfunded.
The Trust performs actuarial valuation of gratuity liability on an annual basis.

The following table sets out the components of net gratuity banefit expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss and amounts recognised in the
Balance Shest for the respective plans:

; Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i |Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss for the year (included in Note 17 Employee
Banefit Expense )
Service cost:

Current service cost 0.31 012
Interest cost D11 0.04
Total expensea charged to Statament of Profit and Loss D.422 D.16

il |Expense recognized in Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Components of actuarial losses / (gains) on obligations:

Due to changes in demographic assumptions = =

Due to changes in financial assumptions 0.01 -

Due to changes in experience adjustments 0.07 D.D3
Total expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 0.08 0.03

iii |Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation
Opening Balance of defined benefit obligation on account of acquisition 1.49 132
Current service cost 0.31 0.12
Interest cost 0.11 0.04
Benefits paid £ E:
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in demographic assumptions = =
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumption = 0.01
Actuarial Joss / {gain) from 2xperiencs over past years 0.08 -
Closing Balance of defined benefit obligation i.99 1.49
L The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations for the Year ended Year ended
Group's plan are as under: March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Discount Rate (p.a) 7.00% 7.10%
Expecled rale of increase in salary (p.a) 10.00%! 10.00%
Withdrawal rates 15.00% 15.00%
Martality Rates Indian Assured Lives lndla_n Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) ULT | Mortality (2012-14) ULT
Expected 2versge remaining working life 5 years 5.5 years
V |sensitivity analysis of impact on Defined benefit abligation (DBO] far changes in significant Year ended Year ended
assumptions is as under: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expected rate of increase in salary
100 basis point increase 0.14 0.10
100 basis point decrease (0.12) 10.09)
Discount Rate
100 basis point increase (0.13} (0.10)
100 basis point decrease 0.14 011
Withdrawal rate
100 basis point increase {0.03) (0.02)
100 basis point decrease 0.03 0.02
Mortality (increase in expected life)
increase in expected life by 1 year Negligible change Negligible change
increase in expected life by 3 years Negligible change Negligible change

b. Defined Contribution Plans

The Group makes Provident Fund to defined contribution plans for qualifying emplaoyees. Under the schemes, the group is required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Group has recognised provident fund contribution including administration cha rges for
the year ended March 31, 2024 of Rs. 0.61 million {March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.21 million) as expense and contribution to pension f ggm}nggar ended
March 31, 2024 of Rs. 0.19 million (March 31, 2023: Rs, 0.07 million) In Note 17 under the head ‘Contributions to Provident an "5
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(32} List of subsidiaries which are included in consolidation and Anzen's effactive holding therein are as under:

(a)

(b}

Country of Ownership interestis

N di -

it oty incorporation As At March 31, 2024 As At March 31, 2023
Directly held by the Trust:

Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ("DMTCL") India 100% 100%
NRSS XXX| [B) Tr Ission Limited ["NRSS") India 100% 100%

Acquisition of Transmission Assets

In previous year, Anzen acquired 100% of the equity share capital of DMTCL and NRSS pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agr t dated N ber 01, 2022 viz.1,62,96,667
equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each of DMTCL and 98,32,143 equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each of NRSS from EIYP in exchange of 83 million units issued by Anzen to EIYP
and subsequent closing on November 11, 2022,

As per the Securities Purchase Agreement, any amounts due to Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI{B) Transmission Limjted ('NRSS')
pursuant to any future order passed by any competent autharity pursuant to claims or appeals filed by Darbhanga - Motihari Transmlslsinn Company Limited ['DMTCL) and NRSS
XXXI[B) Transmission Limited ['NRSS'} until the Closing Date lincluding any claims or appeals filed in relation to the CERC Order such as the appeal filed by DMTCL dated June 24,
2022) ("Future Recelvables”) Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust/Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXX){8} Transmission Limitad ['NRSS')
shall pursuant to the receipt of final, non-appealable orders of a court of compatent jurisdiction, be transfarred to Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus. Based on ths management
assessment of the possible outcome of these matters and timing therzof, the same is not considered as contingent consideration as per Ind AS 103 Business Combination,

(33) Hon'ble Cantral Electricity Regulatory Commission {"CERC") in its order dated December 27, 2023 ["the Drder”) passed the judgament in favour of NRSS, granting them jn —

principle approval of the additional costs incidental to laying optical ground wire ("OPGW")} by replating the earth-wire on the transmission towers under the provisions of
‘Change in law” as stated in Transmission Service Agreement. NRSS would run the bidding process as directed in the Order and approach CERC to get the cost and mechanism for
recovery of the capital expenditure to be incurred, Considering the process is not yet completed and due to uncertainty with respect to the amounts of additional cost and
compensation receivable, the consequent effect of the Order has not basn glven in these financial statements,

(34) Segment reporting

The Trust's activities comprise of owning and investing in tr ission and rer ble energy assets to generate cash flows for distribution te unitholders. Based on the guiding
principles given in Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segments”, this activity falls within a single operating segment and accordingly the disclosures of Ind AS -108 have not separately heen
given.

Under Point of Connection (PoC) mechanism, Power Grid Corporation of India Limited {'PGCIL') is designated as central transmission utility with the responsibility for billing and
collecting of usage charges from Inter-State Transmission Services (ISTS) wisers. Hence the entire amount of trade recsivables pertaining to tr on charges is raceivahl
from PGCIL.

(35) Subsequent evant

On May 24, 2024, the Board of directors of the Investment Manager approved a dividend of Rs. 2.45 per unit for the period January 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024 to be paid on or
before 15 days from the date of declaration.

(36) Previous year figures

Previous period/year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to confirm the current period classification.

ForSRECEZCOUP Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
Firm Registration No: 324982€/E300003 (As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
Lo
e *
peMAmit Sidgh njita Dea Vaibhav Dashi
Partner CI0 & Whole-time Director Chief Financial Officer

DIN No. : 09609160

apoe

lalpa Parekh
Company Secretary
Membership Number : 444507

Membership Number : 408869
Place : Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2024

Place : Mumbal
Date : May 24, 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Audited Standalone
Financial Results of the Trust Pursuant to the Requlation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure
Investment Trusts) Requlations, 2014, as amended

To

The Board of Directors of

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited,

(as Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
Unit 101, First Floor,

Windsor Village, Kole Kalyan Off CST Road,

Vidyanagari Marg, Santacruz (East)

Mumbai - 400098

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Results
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date standalone
financial results of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust (“the InvIT") consisting of the
Statement of Profit or Loss, explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures as
required in Chapter 4 to the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated
July 6, 2023, as amended, including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “SEBI Circulars") for the quarter ended March 31, 2024
and for the year ended March 31, 2024 (‘the Statement’), attached herewith being submitted
by the InvIT pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI

circular.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Statement:

i is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to
time read with the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated
July 6, 2023 in this regard; and

ii.  gives atrue and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net profit and
other comprehensive income and other financial information of the InvIT for the
quarter ended March 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Results"” section of our report. We are independent of the InvIT in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

SRBCE&COLLP aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone annual financial statements.
The Management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (‘the Management’) is responsible
for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair view of the net
profit and other comprehensive income and other financial information of the InvIT in
accordance with the requirement of SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014, as amended from time to time (“the InvIT Regulations"), Indian Accounting Standards as
defined in Rule 2(1)(a)of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not
inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations. This responsibility includes design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Statement, the Management is responsible for assessing the InvIT's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate
the InvIT or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management is also responsible for overseeing the InvIT's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the InvIT's internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the InvIT's abilit
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to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the InvIT to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The Statement includes the standalone financial results for the quarter ended March 31, 2024
being the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year
ended March 31, 2024 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to the third
quarter of the current financial year, which were subjected to a limited review by us, as
required under Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership No.: 408869
UDIN:24408869BKBTQRB£52.8
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 24, 2024




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
SEBI Registration Number : IN/InvIT/21-22/0020
STATEMENT OF AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

{All amounts in INR million, except as stated)

Quarter Quarter Quarter
ended ended ended Yesirended Year ended
Sr. No Particulars (Refer note 2) | (Refer note 2) | (Refer note 2) (Refer note 2)
31-Mar-2024 | 31-Dec-2023 | 31-Mar-2023 | 31-Mar-2024 | 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
1 |Income
Revenue from operations 529.22 535.04 524.84 2,128.52 668.29
Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 2.97 2.82 4.21 11.64 13.49
Income from investment in mutual funds 5.58 4.28 3.78 21.46 24.33
Other income - 0.08 - 413 -
Total income 537.77 542.22 532.83 2,165.75 706.11
2 |Expenses
Finance costs 158.69 160.31 156.56 637.47 210.31
Legal and professional fees 2.85 0.35 0.66 4.79 111
Annual listing fees 0.52 0.52 - 2.08 2.62
Rating fees 1.21 0.84 - 2.61 2.66
Valuation expenses 0.85 - 0.29 0.85 0.90
Trustee fees 0.45 0.46 0.30 1.83 0.64
Audit fees
- Statutory audit fees {including limited review) 245 0.62 0.61 4.52 2.97
- Other services (including certification) 0.06 0.06 0.15 0.24 0.15
Other expenses 0.07 0.05 0.91 0.23 0.91
Total expenses 167.15 163.21 159.48 654.62 222.27
3 |Profit before tax {1-2) 370.62 379.01 373.35 1,511.13 483.84
4 |Tax expense
(i) Current tax 3.19 2.76 3.11 15.13 15.05
(i) Deferred tax - - - - -
(i) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (0.05) - - (0.05) -
5 [Net profit for the period/year after tax (3 + 4) 367.48 376.25 370.24 1,496.05 468.79
6 |Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - - - - -
7 |Total Comprehensive Income for the period/year (5 t 6) 367.48 376.25 370.24 1,496.05 468.79
8 :::sc:alggz;lérizzi; SRS RECERS) (AR 15,624.79 15,624.79 15,624.79 15,624.79 15,624.79
S |Earnings Per Unit (Rs. per unit} {refer note D under additional
disclosures)
i) Basic 2.33 2.38 6.07 9.47 7.68
ii) Diluted 2.33 2.38 6.07 S.47 7.68
Additional disclosure as required by Paragraph 18 of Chapter 4 of SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD 2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated
06 July 2023
Quarter Quarter Quarter Year ended
ended ended ended (Refer note 2) | vear ended
Sr. No, Particulars (Refer note 2) | (Refer note 2} | (Refer note 2)
31-Mar-2024 | 31-Dec-2023 | 31-Mar-2023 | 31-Mar-2024 | 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
1 |Asset cover ratio [Refer note 10] 3.11 3.08 3.13 311 3.13
2 |Debt Equity Ratio (in times) (Refer note 10) 0.47 0.47 0.47 047 0.47
3 |Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) (Refer nate 10) 3.34 3.36 3.38 3.37 3.30
4 |Interest Service Coverage Ratio (in times) (Refer nate 10) 3.34 3.36 3.38 3.37 3.30
5 |Net worth [Refer note 10] 15,850.05 15,869.67 15,897.66 15,850.05 15,897.66
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Notes:

1 The above audited standalone financial results for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024 has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
(‘Investment Manager’) at their respective meetings held on 24 May 2024.

2 The audited standalone financial results comprises of the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, explanatory notes
thereto and the additional disclosures as required in Chapter 4 to the SEBI Master Circular No SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated 06 July 2023, as amended, including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder ("SEBI
Circulars") of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust (the “InviT" or “Trust”) for the quarter and year ended 31 March
2024 (“standalone financial results”) being submitted by the Trust pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 23 of
the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circulars
(“InvIT Regulations”).The quarter ended 31 March 2024 standalone financial results are derived figures between the
audited figures in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024 and the published year-to-date figures up to 31
December 2023, being the date of the end of nine months of the current financial year, which were subject to limited
review.

3 The Trust has acquired the entire equity share capital of Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited
('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission Limited (‘NRSS') from Edelwesiss Infrastructure Yield Plus {'EIYP') pursuant to
share purchase agreement dated on 1 November 2022 and subsequent closing on 11 November 2022. The Trust
issued its units amounting to INR 4,700 million and INR 3,600 million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in
DMTCL and NRSS respectively.

4 The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager approved a distribution of INR 2.45 per unit for the quarter ended
31 March 2024 to be paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration.

5 The Trust raised funds of INR 7,500 million through initial issue of units on 11 November 2022 on private placement
basis.

6 The Trust has allotted 7500 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of INR 1
million each for an aggregate amount of INR 7,500 million on 1 December 2022 on private placement basis.

7 The Trust was registered as an irrevocable trust under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on 1 November 2021 and as an
Infrastructure Investment Trust under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts)
Regulations, 2014 on 18 January 2022.

8 The listed Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by the following
(a) a first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the Issuer’s current assets and other assets (excluding DSR
and DSRA), both present and future, including: (i) all the receivables, right, title, interest, benefits, claims and
demands whatsoever of the Issuer in, to and under all the loans and advances extended by the Issuer to the SPVs
and HoldCo(s), present and future {collectively, the “Issuer Loans”); (i) the receivables, right, title and interest and
benefits of the Issuer in, to and under all the financing agreements, deeds, documents and agreements or any other
instruments (both present and future) which are now executed or may hereafter be executed by the Issuer with
respect to the Issuer Loans; Step in rights on the Loans shall be with the Common Security Trustee. (iii) all bank
accounts of the Issuer, Including but not limited to the Escrow Account and the Sub-Accounts (including Cash Trap
Sub Account) (if any) (excluding the distribution account and the accounts opened to meet the debt service reserve
requirements in respect of any Additional Debt) or any accounts in substitution thereof that may be opened in
accordance with the Debt Securities Documents, and in all funds from time to time deposited therein (including the
reserves), all designated account opened with designated banks and the Permitted Investments or other securities
representing all amounts credited to the Escrow Account;
(b) a first and exclusive charge on the DSR and DSRA to be created in favour of the Common Security Trustee for
benefit of Debt Securities under this Deed, and all amounts lying therein;
(c) a first pari passu pledge over 100% (one hundred percent) of the equity share capital, compulsorily convertible
debentures, optionally convertible debentures, non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer in all
the Project SPVs.
(d) pari passu pledge over unencumbered equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, aptionally
convertible debentures, non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer and Holdco(s) in all the Other
SPVs and Holdco(s) (as applicable).

9 The Trust retained its credit ratings of "CRISIL AAA/Stable" from CRISIL as on 15 April 2024 and "IND AAA/Stable"
from India Ratings as on 23 April 2024.

10 Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows:

. Asset cover = Total Assets having Pari-Passu charge/(Long Term Borrowings + Interest accrued on Long term debt)

i. Debt Equity Ratio = Long Term Borrowings/ (Unitholders' Equity + Retained Earnings)

iii. Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Interest and Tax / (Interest Expense + Principal Repayments made
during the period)

iv. Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Interest and Tax / Interest expense

v. Net worth = Unitholders' Equity + Retained Earnings
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A)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 6 OF CHAPTER 4 TO THE MASTER CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PaD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 DATED 06 JULY
2023 AS AMENDED INCLUDING ANY GUIDELINES AND CIRCULARS ISSUED THEREUNDER ("SEBI CIRCULARS")

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Quarter Quarter Quarter Year ended
Description ended ended ended (Refer note 2) Year ended
(Refer note 2) (Refer note 2) | (Refer note 2)
31-Mar-2024 31-Dec-2023 | 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited

Inflow from Project SPV Distributions
Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of interest / accrued interest 529.22 535.04 527.40 2,128.52 712.87
/ additional interest
Add: Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of dividend - - - = -
Add: Cash flows from the SPVs towards the repayment of the debt - = 2 = 626.00
provided to the SPVs by the Anzen Trust and/ or redemption of]
debentures issued bv SPVs to the Anzen Trust
Add: Cash flows from the SPVs through capital reduction by way of a - - = = -
buy back or any other means as permitted, subject to applicable law
Inflow from Investments / Assets
Add: Cash flows from sale of equity shares or any other investments in - - = = -
SPVs adjusted for amounts reinvested or planned to be reinvested
Add: Cash flows from the sale of the SPVs not distributed pursuant to - - & = -
an earlier plan to reinvest, or if such proceeds are not intended to be
invested subsequently
Inflow from Liabilities
Add: Cash flows from additional borrowings (including debentures / - - - - 15,000.00
other securities), fresh issuance of units, etc.
Other Inflows
Add: Any other income accruing at the Anzen Trust and not captured 7.37 8.58 711 40.08 35.09
above, as deemed necessary by the Investment Manager, including but|
not limited to interest / return on surplus cash invested by the Anzen
Trust
Total cash inflow at the Anzen Trust level (A) 536.59 543.62 534.51 2,168.60 16.373.96
Outflow for Anzen Trust Expenses / Taxes
Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expenses incurred at the Anzen (295.09) (19.05) (321.45) (606.77) (438.76)
Trust, including but not limited to the fees of the Investment Manager,
Project Manager, Trustee, Auditar, Valuer, Credit Rating Agency, etc.
Less: Income tax (if applicable) for standalone Anzen Trust and / or (3.14) (2.76) (3.11) {15.08) (15.05)
payment of other statutory dues
Outflow for Liabilities
Less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal) / redeemable . - - =
preference shares / debentures, etc., net of any debt raised by,
refinancing of existing debt
Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as - - - - {155.00)
DSRA, minimum cash balance, etc.
Outflow for Assets
Less: Amount invested in any of the SPVs - - - - (15,071.00)
Less: Amounts set aside to be invested or planned to be invested, as - - - - -
deemed necessary by the Investment Manager in compliance with the|
InvIT Regulations
Less: Investments including acquisition of other SPVs - . - & 5
Other Outflows
Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment 134,81 (1372.77) 167.20 (22.28) (102.47)
Manager for expenses which may be due in future
Add / Less: Amounts added/ retained in accaordance with the| - - - < »
transaction documents or the loan agreements in relation to the Anzen
Trust
Less: Any other expense of the Anzen Trust not captured herein as - - - - E]
deemed necessary by the Investment Manager
Add / Less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board ta - - - - -
ensure that there is no double counting of the same item for the above
calculations
Total cash outflow/retention at the Anzen Trust level (B) (163.42) (159.58) {157.36) (644.13) (15,782.28)
Net Distrit ble Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 373.17 384.04 377.15 1,524.47 591.68

INR 1,543.66 million distribution has been paid during the year ended March 31, 2024, (FY 2022-23: INR 195.92 million)
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B)

<)

D}

Contingent liabilities

The Trust has no contingent liabilities as on 31 March 2024. ( As on 31 December 2023:Nil, As on 31 March 2023: Nil)

Statement of Commitments

The Trust has no commitments as on 31 March 2024. (As on 31 December 2023:Nil, As on 31 March 2023: Nil)

Statement of Earnings per unit:

Basic earnings per unit amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to Unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding

during the period.

Diluted earnings per unit amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the
period plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital.

Quarter Quarter Quarter
ended ended ended Yearended | o nded
Particulars (Refer note 2) | (Refer note 2} | (Refer note 2) {Refer note 2)
31-Mar-2024 31-Dec-2023 | 31-Mar-2023 | 31-Mar-2024 | 31-Mar-2023

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
Profit after tax for calculating basic and diluted earnings per unit attributable 367.48 376.25 370.24 1,496.05 468.79
to unitholders
Weighted average number of units in calculating basic and diluted earnings 158.00 158.00 61.04 158.00 61.04
per unit {No. in million)
Earnings Per Unit
Basic and diluted (Rupees/unit) (Not annualised for the quarter) 233 238 6.07 9.47 7.68

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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E)

a)

b)

<)

a)

b)

i)

ii)

iiii}

iv)

Statement of Related Party Transactions:
List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Entity with control over the Trust
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus

Entity with significant influence over the Trust

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Ultimate holding Company of ERAML

Subsidiaries
Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited (DMTCL)
NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited (NRSS)

List of related parties as per Regulation 2{1)(zv) of the InvIT Regulations
Parties to Anzen

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL} - Sponsor and Project manager
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager

Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL) - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Promoters of the parties to Anzen specified in (a) above

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Promoters of SEPL
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited (w.e.f. 29 March 2023) Promoters of ERAML
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited (upto 28 March 2023) Promoters of ERAML
Axis Bank Limited Promoters of ATSL

Directors of the parties to Anzen specified in (a) above
Directors of SEPL

Vijayanand Semletty (w.e.f. 2 August 2023)

Avinash Prabhakar Rao (upto 2 August 2023)

Sushant Sujir Nayak

Tharuvai Venugopal Rangaswami

Directors of ERAML

Venkatchalam Ramaswamy

Subahoo Chordia

Sunil Mitra

Prabhakar Panda (upto 1 April 2023)
Ranjita Deo

Shiva Kumar

Bala C Deshpande (w.e.f. 1 April 2023)
Nupur Garg {w.e.f. 23 May 2023)

Key Managerial Personnel of ERAML

Ranjita Deo {Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer)
Vaibhav Doshi (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f. 1 February 2023)
lalpa Parekh (Company Secretary)

Directors of ATSL

Deepa Rath

Prashant Ramrao Joshi (w.e.f. 16 January 2024)
Sumit Bali (w.e.f. 16 January 2024)

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya (upto 15 January 2024)
Ganesh Sankaran (upto 15 January 2024)
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Related party transactions:

(All amounts in INR million, except as stated)

Quarter ended Guarter Guarter Year ended
(Refer note 2) i A {Refer note 2) Yearended
Particulars Name of related party (Refer note 2) | (Refer note 2)
31-Mar-2024 | 31-Dec-2023 | 31-Mar-2023 | 31-Mar-2024 | 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
Issue of units Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus = * " - 9,380.00
Issue of units Sekura Energy Private Limited - . * - 2,380.00
Issue of units Axis Bank Limited - - = - 500.00
Issue of NCD Axis Bank Limited - = = - 3,000.00
Interest expense on NCD Axis Bank Limited 59.75 60.57 59.25 240.79 78.66
. . Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission 261.86 264.74 259.69 1,053.20 313.25
Interest income on Loan given o
Company Limited
Interest income on Loan given NRSS XXXI {B) Transmission Limited 188.23 190.29 186.67 757.04 24349
. Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission 39.25 39.69 38.93 157.88 58.83
Interest income on OCD L
Company Limited
Interest income on OCD NRSS XXX! {B) Transmission Limited 28.30 28.62 28.07 113.84 32.07
. Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission 11.58 11.70 11.48 46.56 20.65
Interest income on NCD -
Company Limited
Interest income on investment n fixed ;. gy 1imited 2.97 2.82 4.21 11.64 9.62
deposits
Reimbursement of expenses from Axis Bank Limited - - - 4.05 -
Investment in fixed deposits Axis Bank Limited - - 894.91 21.70 3,549.91
Redemption of fixed deposits Axis Bank Limited - - 873.67 42.94 3,373.67
. Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission - - - - 6,910.00
Loan given P
Company Limited
Loan given NRSS XXXI (8) Transmission Limited - = = = 5,030.00
Loan repaid Darbhanga B Motihari Transmission - - - - 327.50
Company Limited
Loan repaid NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited - - - - 298.50
Reimbursement of expenses to Sekura Energy Private Limited - - 14.60 0.06 101.59
Reimbursement of ses t i i i
elmbursement of expen. 0 E.de.lwelss Alternative Asset Advisors R ~ 0.05 _ 0.05
Limited
Unit placement fees Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - - - - 11.09
Arranger fees for NCD facilities Axis Bank Limited - - . - 8.89
Trustee Fee Axis Trustee Services Limited 0.18 0.18 0.02 0.71 0.26
Distribution to unit holders Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 221.48 229.81 116.31 908.10 116.31
Distribution to unit holders Sekura Energy Private Limited 58.31 58.31 29.51 232.53 2951
Distribution to unit holders Axis Bank Limited - - 3.97 14.12 3.97
Investriient i Equity instraments of Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus - - = s 5,453.00
DMTCL
Investment in Equity instruments of
NRSS L Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus - - - 4,132.87
Investment in OCD of DMTCL Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus - - - - 877.10
Investment in OCD of NRSS Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus - - - - 632.44
Investment in NCD of DMTCL Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus - - - - 291.00
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IV. Related party balances:

Asat Asat Asat
31-Mar-2024 31-Dec-2023 31-Mar-2023
Particulars Name of related party [Receivabie/ (Payable)] [Receivable/ (Payable)] | [Receivable/ (Payable)]
(Refer note 2) (Refer note 2)
Audited Unaudited Audited
Loan to subsidiaries Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission 6,582.50 6,582.50 6,582.50
Company Limited
Loan to subsidiaries NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited 4,731.50 4,731.50 4,731.50
Balances with banks in current accounts |Axis Bank Limited 471 140.88 3.40
Fixed deposits Axis Bank Limited 155.00 155.00 176.24
Interest accrued on fixed depaosits Axis Bank Limited - - 0.11
Trade payables Sekura Energy Private Limited - & (19.59)
Trade payables Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors - Cy (0.05)
Limited
Trade payables Axis Trustee Services Limited - - (0.26)
Interest accrued but not due on Axis Bank Limited {0.66) (61.23) (0.66)
borrowings
Outstanding NCD Axis Bank Limited (3,000.00) (3,000.00) {3,000.00)
Investment in OCD Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission 877.10 877.10 877.10
Company Limited
Investment in OCD NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited 632.44 632.44 632.44
Investment in NCD Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission 291.00 291.00 291.00
Company Limited

Details in respect of related party transactions involving acquisition
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated 06 July 2023 as ded includi

g

For the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024:
No acquisition during the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024.

For the year ended 31 March 2023:
Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has acquired Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL'

any gt

of InvIT assets as required by Para 4.6.6 of Chapter 4 of SEBI Master Circular No.
and circulars issued thereunder ("SEBI Circulars") are as follows:

) and NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission Limited (‘NRSS') from

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus ('EIYP') pursuant to share purchase agreement dated on 1 November 2022 and subsequent closing on 11 November 2022. The Trust
issued its units amounting to INR 4,700 million and INR 3,600 million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NRSS respectively.

Summary of valuation report

Particulars DMTCL NRSS

Enterprise value as at 30 June 2022 12,907.00 9,897.00
Method of valuation Discounted Cash Flow Discounted Cash Flow
Discount rate (WACC) 8.45% 8.24%

13

Enterprise value as disclosed above are based solely on the fair valuation repart dated 18 October 2022 of the independent valuer appointed by the Investment
manager under the InviT Regulations.

Changes in Accounting policies
There is no change in the Accounting policy of the Trust for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024.

Figures for previous periods have been regrouped / reclassified wherever considered necessary.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
(as Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)

Ranjita Deo

Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer
DIN No. : 09609160

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 24, 2024
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S R B C & CO LLP ggagggh?qurch Park, Yerwada

(Near Don Bosco School)
Chartered Accountants Pune - 411 006, India

Tel : +91 20 6603 6000

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Consolidated Financial
Results of the Trust Pursuant to the Requlation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Requlations, 2014, as amended

To

The Board of Directors of

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited,

(as Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
Unit 101, First Floor,

Windsor Village, Kole Kalyan Off CST Road,

Vidyanagari Marg, Santacruz (East)

Mumbai - 400098

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Results
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date consolidated
financial results of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust (“the InvIT") and its Subsidiaries
(together "the Group™) consisting of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures as required in Chapter 4 to the SEBI
Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023, as amended,
including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (hereinafter collectively referred to as
“SEBI Circulars”) for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31,
2024 (‘the Statement'), attached herewith being submitted by the InvIT pursuant to the
requirement of Requlation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI circular.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Statement:

i includes the results of the following entities;
a. Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited

b. NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited

ii. arepresented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to
time read with the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated
July 6, 2023 in this regard; and

iil. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards,
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated net
loss and other comprehensive income and other financial information of the Group
for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Results” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code
of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and we have fulfilled our

5 R BC&COLLP, aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management's Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Results

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the consolidated annual financial
statements. The Management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (‘the Management’)
is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair
view of the consolidated net loss and other comprehensive income and other financial
information of the Group in accordance with the requirement of InvIT Regulations, Indian
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a)of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, to the extent not inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the Statement by the Management, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Statement, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of entity's internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including
the disclosures, and whether the Statement represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial results/financial
information of the entities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors,
to express an opinion on the Statement. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial information of such entities
included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the Statement, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the InvIT and such other entities
included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide
those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Other Matter

The Statement includes the consolidated financial results for the quarter ended

March 31, 2024 being the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of the full
financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to
the end of the third quarter of the current financial year, which were subjected to a limited
review by us, as required under the Regulation 23 of SEBI (Infrastructure Investments Trusts)
Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023.

For SRBC &COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership No.: 408869
UDIN: 24408869 RKRT® D230R
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 24, 2024




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
SEBI Registration Number : IN/InvIT/21-22/0020
STATEMENT OF AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

[All amounts in INR million, except as stated)
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Quarter Quarter Quarter yearended
ended ended ended (Refer note 2) Year ended
Sr. No Particulars (Refer note 2) | (Refer note 2) | (Refer note 2}
31-Mar-2024 | 31-Dec-2023 | 31-Mar-2023 | 31-Mar-2024 | 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
1 |Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 603.16 610.27 597.84 2,426.41 936.69
Income from investment in mutual funds 15.69 14.87 24.46 67.21 51.37
Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 3.67 3.16 4.22 13.04 8.62
Other income 0.51 1.35 1.78 14.44 2.52
Total income 623.03 629.65 628.30 2,521.10 999.20
2 Expenses
Operation and maintenance expense 23.60 13.46 2331 78.07 30.60
Employee benefits expense 551 4.80 459 19.40 6.79
Finance costs 158.69 160.31 156.12 637.87 439.20
Depreciation expense 465.77 470.66 491.62 1872.50 77013
Investment management fees 16.14 16.31 16.00 64.90 2418
Project management fees 5.32 4.30 5.17 20.66 10.53
Insurance expenses 9.69 8.70 14.99 38.27 20.87
Legal and professional fees 11.85 8.92 25.08 39.10 35.59
Annual listing fees 052 0.52 - 2.08 2.62
Rating fees 1.21 0.84 - 261 2.66
Valuation expenses 0.85 - 0.28 0.85 0.90
Trustee fees 0.45 0.46 0.30 1.83 0.64
Payment to auditors
- Statutory Audit fees (including Limited review) 3.87 0.62 1.23 5.94 3.73
- Other services (including certifications) 0.06 0.06 0.02 034 0.02
Other expenses 5.23 4.16 4.95 18.87 7.82
Total expenses 708.76 695.12 743.66 2,803.29 1,356.28
3  |Loss before tax (1-2) (85.73) (65.47) {115.36) (282.19) (357.08)
4 Tax expense
(i) Current tax 3.19 2.76 (26.21) 1543 (37.84)
(i) Deferred tax 4 - - - -
(iii) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (0.05) - - (0.05) -
5  |Net loss for the period/year after tax (3 £ 4) {88.87) {68.23) {89.15) {297.27) (319.24)
6 Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.12) 0.02 {0.03) (0.08) (0.03)
7  |Total Comprehensive Income for the period/year (5 # 6) (88.99) (68.21) (89.18) (292.35) (319.27)
Loss for the period/year
Attributable to :
Unit holders (88.87) (68.23) (89.15) (297.27) (319.24)
Non- Controlling interest - - - » -
Total comprehensive income for the period/year:
Attributable to :
Unit holders (88.99) (68.21) (89.18) {297.35) (319.27)
Non- Controlling interest - - - . -
Earnings per unit (INR per unit)
(Face value of INR 100 per unit)
(refer note E under additional disclosures)
-Basic (0.56) (0.43) (1.46) (1.88) (5.23)
-Diluted (0.56) (0.43) (1.46) (1.88) {5.23)
Additional disclosure as required by Paragraph 18 of Chapter 4 of SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD 2/P/CIR/2023/115
dated 06 July 2023
Sr. No. |Particulars Quarter Quarter Quarter —.
ended ended ended Year ended
(Refer note 2)
(Refer note 2} | (Refer note 2} | (Refer note 2)
31-Mar-2024 | 31-Dec-2023 | 31-Mar-2023 | 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Auditest”]
% 2.81 2.83) 3.14 2.81 :
i D I 0.56 0.54 0.49 0.56 &
3 |Debt Service Coverage|Ratio {in times) (Refer note 10) 3.39 3.53 3.41 3.49 S
4 |Interest Service Coverdge Ratic (In times) (Refer note 10) 3.39 353 3.41 3.49
5 Net worth (INR in millign) (Refer note 10) 13,268.59 13,744.68 15,109.60| 13,268.59
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Notes

The above audited consolidated financial results for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024 has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (‘Investment Manager’) at their respective
meetings held on 24 May 2024.

The audited consolidated financial results comprises of the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, explanatory notes thereto and the
additional disclosures as required in Chapter 4 to the SEBI Master Circular No SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated 06 July 2023,
as amended, including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder {"SEBI Circulars") of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust (the “InvIT"
or “Trust”) for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024 (“consolidated financial results”} being submitted by the Trust pursuant to the
requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with
SEBI Circulars {“InvIT Regulations”).The quarter ended 31 March 2024 standalone financial results are derived figures between the audited
figures in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024 and the published year-to-date figures up to 31 December 2023, being the date of the
end of nine months of the current financial year, which were subject to limited review.

Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has acquired the entire equity share capital of Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited
('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission Limited {('NRSS') from Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus ('EIYP') pursuant to share purchase
agreement dated on 1 November 2022 and subsequent closing on 11 November 2022,

Pursuant to the approval of Board of Directors of the Investment Manager, the Trust has appointed Sekura Energy Private Limited (‘SEPL’)
as Project Manager for all Project SPVs. As per the Project Implementation and Management Agreement dated 1 November 2022, the
Project Manager is entitled to fees at 15% of gross operation and maintenance expenses {excluding insurance and statutory costs)
incurred by each SPV per annum plus Goods and Services Tax at rate as applicable effective from the closing date i.e. 11 November 2022.
There are no changes in the methodology of computation of fees paid to Project Manager.

Investment manager fee has been considered based on the amended Investment Management Agreement dated 27 February 2024, The
Investment manager fee is INR 55 million per annum plus Goods and Services Tax at rate as applicable which is allocated to each Project
SPV equally. There are no changes in the methodology of computation of fees paid to Investment Manager.

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager approved a distribution of INR 2.45 per unit for the quarter ended 31 March 2024 to be
paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration.

The Trust raised funds of INR 7,500 million through initial issue of units on 11 November 2022 on private placement basis.

The Trust has allotted 7500 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-Canvertible Debentures of face value of INR 1 million each for an
aggregate amount of INR 7,500 million on 1 December 2022 on private placement basis.

The Trust was registered as an irrevacable trust under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on 1 November 2021 and as an Infrastructure
Investment Trust under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 on 18 January
2022,

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows :

. Asset cover = Total Assets/(Long Term Borrowings + Interest accrued on Long term debt)
ii. Debt Equity Ratio = Long Term Borrowings/ (Unitholders' Equity+Retained Earnings)
iii.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings hefore Interest, Depreciation and Tax / {Interest Expense + Principal Repayments made during the
period)

iv. Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Interests, Depreciation and Tax / Interest Expense
. Net worth = Unitholders' Equity+Retained Earnings

P
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A

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 6 OF CHAPTER 4 TO THE MASTER CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 DATED 06
JULY 2023 AS AMENDED INCLUDING ANY GUIDELINES AND CIRCULARS ISSUED THEREUNDER ("SEBI CIRCULARS")

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {(NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

(All amounts in INR million, except as stated)

Description

Quarter ended
{Refer note 2)

Quarter ended
(Refer note 2)

Quarter ended

(Refer note 2)

Year ended
(Refer note 2)

31-Mar-2024

31-Dec-2023

31-Mar-2023

Year ended

31-Mar-2024

31-Mar-2023

Audited

Unaudited

Audited

Audited

Inflow from Project SPV Distributions

Cash Naws received from SPVy in the form of interest / accrued Interest /
additional interest

Add: Cash flows received from 5PVs [n the form of dividend

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs towards the repayment of tha debt provided to
the SPVs by the Anzen Trust and/ or redemption of debentures issued by 5PVs
to the Anzen Trust

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs through capital reduction by way of a buy back
or any other means as permitted, subject to applicable law

Inflow from Investments / Assets
Add: Cash flows from sale of equity shares or any other investments In SPVs
adjusted for amounts reinvested or plannad to be relnvestad

Add: Cash flows from the sala of tha SPVs not distributed pursuant to an
earlier plan to reinvest, or if such proceeds are not Intanded to ba investad
subsequrntly

inflow from Liabilities

Add: Cash flows from additional borrowings (including debentures / other
securities), fresh Issuance of units, ete,

Other Inflows

Add: Any other income accruing at the Anzen Trust and not captured above,
as deemed necessary by the Investment Manager, including but nat limited to
interest / return on surplus cash invested by the Anzen Trust

529.22

737

535.04

8.58

527.40

7.11

Audited

2,128.52

40.08

712.87

626.00

15,000.00

35.09

Total cash inflow at the Anzen Trust level {A)

536.59

543.62

534.51

2,168.60

16,373.96

Qutflow far Anzen Trust Expenses / Taxes

Less: Any payment of fees, interast and expenses Incurrad at the Anzen Trust,
including but not limited to the faes of the Investment Manager, Project
Manager, Trustee, Auditor, Valuer, Credit Rating Agency, etc,

Less: Income tax [if applicable) for standalone Anzan Trust and / or payment
of ather statutory dues

Outflow far Liahilities

Less: Repayment of third-party debt {principal) / redesmable preference
shares / debentures, etc., net of any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with harrawing requirements such as DSRA,
minlmum cash balance, etc.

Outflow for Assets

Less: Amount invested in any of the SPVs

Less: Amounts set aside to be invested or planned to be invested, as deermed
necessary by the Investment Manager in compliance with the InuIT
Regulations

Less: investments including acquisition of other SPVs
Other Outflows

Less: Any provisian or reserve deemed necessary by the Invesiment Manager
for expenses which may be due in future
Add / Less: Amounts added/ retained In accordance with the transaction
documents ar the loan agreements in relation to the Anzen Trust
Less: Any othar expense of the Anzen Trust not captured herein as deemed
necessary by the Investment Manager
Add / Less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board io ensure
that there is no double counting of the same item for the above calculations

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C} = (A+B)

(295.09)

(3.14)

134.81

{19.05)

(2.76)

(137.77)

(321.45)

(3.11)

167.20

(606.77)

(15.08)

(22.28)

(438.76)

{15.05)

{155.00)

(15,071.00)

(102.47)

(163.42)

(159.58)

{157.36}

(15,782.28)

373.17

384.04

377.15

591.68

INR 1,543.66 million distribution has been paid during the year ended March 31, 2024. (FY 2022-23: INR 195.92 million)
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B) Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) of underlying SPVs

i} Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL')

{All amaunts in INR million, except as stated)

Quarter ended | Quarter ended | Quarter ended | Year ended
{Refer note 2) | (Refer note 2) | (Refer note 2) | (Refer note 2} | vyoar ended
Description
31-Mar-2024 | 31-Dec-2023 | 31-Mar-2023 | 31-Mar-2024 | 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited

Loss after tax as per profit and loss account (standalone) {A) (149.70) {139.90) (136.89) (574.17) (248.70)
Reversal of Distributions charged to P&L - - - ~ o
Add: Interest (including interest on unpaid interest, if any) on loans availed 312.70 316.12 310.10 1,257.64 391.94
from / debentures issued to the Anzen Trust, as per profit and loss account
Adjustment of Non-cash items
Add: Depreciation, impairment (in case of impairment reversal, same will be 145.84 147.22 157.65 585.78 246.96
deducted) and amortisation as per profit and loss account.
Add / less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income (net of - - - - =
actual cash flows for these items), including but not limited to
s Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liabllity 0.35 0.47 {8.17) (3.57) (8.81)
recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the
liability at fair value;
« |nterest cost as per effective interest rate method [difference between - - {1.68) = 73.58
accrued and actual paid);
» Deferred tax, lease rents, provisions, etc, (0.18) (0.75) (0.19) (1.05) 3.50
Adjustments for Assets on Balance Sheet
Add / less: Decrease / increase in working capital 50.09 (15.66) 101.72 52.70 388.98
Add / less: Loss / gain on sale of assets / investments (5.95) (6.27) (4.85) (22.73) (8.52)
Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments 5.95 6.27 - 31.25 -
adjusted for proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested.
Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments - . = ~ -
not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to reinvest, if such proceeds are not
intended to be invested subsequently.
Less: Capital expenditure, if any. (8.30) (0.14) (2.83) (16.93) (7.02)
Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any. - - - - -
Adjustments for Liabilities on Balance Sheet - -
Less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal) / redeemable preference - » & % -
shares / debentures, etc., net of any debt raised by refinancing of existing
debt.
Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, - - = = -
minimum cash balance, etc.
Add: Proceeds from additional borrowings (including debentures / other - - - & =
securities), fresh issuance of equity shares / preference shares, etc.
Less: Payment of any other liabilities {not covered under working capital) - - - - -
Other Adjustments - -
Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager| (6.00) - - (16.00) -
for expenses / liabilities which may be due in future.
Add / less: Amounts added or retained in accordance with the transaction - - {104.56}) - {385.33)
documents or the loan agreements in relation ta the SPVs.
Add / less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure - - & 3 =
that there is no double counting of the same item for the above calculations.
Add: Such partion of the existing cash balance available, if any, as deemed - » - " -
necessary by the Investment Manager in line with the InvIT Regulations.
Total Adjustments (B} 494.50 447.26 447.09 1,867.08 695.28
Net Distributable Cash Flows (€} = (A+B) 344.80 307.36 310.20 1,292.92 446.58

During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to Anzen.
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NRSS XXX1{B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS')

{All amounts in INR million, except as stated)

Description

Quarter ended
(Refer note 2)

Quarter ended
(Refer note 2)

Quarter ended
{Refer note 2)

Year ended
(Refer note 2)

31-Mar-2024

31-Dec-2023

31-Mar-2023

Year ended

31-Mar-2024

Audited

Unaudited

Audited

31-Mar-2023

Audited

Loss after tax as per profit and loss account (standalone) {A)

Reversal of Distributions charged to P&L

Add: Interest ({including interest on unpaid interest, if any) on loans availed
from / debentures issued to the Anzen Trust, as per profit and loss account
Adjustment of Non-cash items

Add: Depreciation, impairment (in case of impairment reversal, same will be|
deducted) and amortisation as per profit and loss account.

Add / less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income (net of]
actual cash flows for these items), including but not limited to

= Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability
recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the
liability at fair value;

= Interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between
accrued and actual paid);

» Deferred tax, lease rents, provisions, etc.

Adjustments for Assets on Balance Sheet

Add / less: Decrease / increase in working capital

Add / less: Loss / gain on sale of assets / investments

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments
adjusted for proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested.

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments
not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to reinvest, if such proceeds are not
intended to be invested subsequently.

Less: Capital expenditure, if any.

Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any.
Adjustments for Liabilities on Balance Sheet

Less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal) / redeemable preference
shares / debentures, etc., net of any debt raised by refinancing of existing
debt.

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA,
minimum cash balance, etc.

Add: Proceeds from additional borrowings (including debentures / other
securities), fresh issuance of equity shares / preference shares, etc.

Less: Payment of any other liabilities (not covered under working capital)
Other Adjustments

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager
for expenses / liabllitles which may be due in future.

Add / less: Amounts added or retained in accordance with the transaction
documents or the loan agreements in relation to the SPVs.

Add / less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure
that there is na double counting of the same item for the above calculations.

Add: Such portion of the existing cash balance available, if any, as deemed
necessary by the Investment Manager in line with the InvIT Regulations.

Total Adjustments (B)

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B)

{69.37)

216.54

82.62

2.20

(0.86)

46.65
(6.71)
6.71

(64.66)

218.90

83.52

(0.49)

{0.16)
(21.00)

(4.30)
430

(0.09)

(77.95)

214.74

83.41

(3.73)

(0.13)

31.45
(3.93)

(54.16)

Audited

(264.72)

870.88

332.26

(1.1B)

(1.26)

35.85
(18.29)
2a.64

{65.00)

(167.36)

287.47

140.08

(3.36)

58.50
1.06

199.07
(6.35)

{196.63)

307.15

280.68

273.65

1,177.83

237.78

216.02

195.70

913.11

During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to Anzen.
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&)

ii)

iii)

D)

E)

Contingent liabilities

As at As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-2024 31-Dec-2023 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited
Other matters (refer note below) 78.43 78.43 78.43

During the financial year 2016-17, land owners have filed a case with the District Court, Ludhiana, Punjab towards compensation amounting to
INR 61.65 million {(March 31, 2023:INR 61.65 million) for the value of land over which the transmission line is passing. The Group is of the view
that required amount of compensation to these landowners have already been paid and no further compensation is payable.

During the financial year 2020-21, land owners have filed a case with the Civil Court, Pehowa, Haryana towards compensation amounting to INR 2
million (March 31, 2023:INR 2 million) for costs incurred on account of transmission line passing. The Group is of the view that required amount
of compensation to these fandowners have already been paid and no further compensation is payable.

During the financial year FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20, Power Grid Corporation of India Limited claimed recovery of Interest During Construction
("IDC"), Incidental Expenses During Construction (“IEDC”) and transmission charges respectively amounting to INR 14.78 million (March 31,
2023:INR 14.78 million) on account of delay in commissioning of transmission lines by the Group. The Group is of the view that the defay in
commissioning of transmission lines was due to force majeure events which were beyond the control of the Group. The Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission concluded in another matter through order dated 29/03/2019 passed in Petition No. 195/MP/2017 that delay in
commissioning was not due to reasons attributable to the Group.

The outcome of the all above claims are uncertain and accordingly, disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Statement of Commitments

The Group has entered into transmission services agreement (TSA) with long term transmission customers pursuant to which the Group has to
transmit power of contracted capacity and ensure minimum availability of transmission line over the period of the TSA. The TSA contains
provision for penalties in case of certain defaults.

Statement of Earnings per unit:
Basic earnings per unit amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the period attributable to Unit holders by the weighted average number of
units outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per unit amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units
outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units
inta 1init ranital

Quarter Quarter Quarter
ended ended ended (::; :_‘:::::dz) Year ended
Particulars (Refer note 2) | (Refernote2) | (Refer note 2)
31-Mar-2024 31-Dec-2023 31-Mar-2023 | 31-Mar-2024 | 31-Mar-2023

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
Loss after tax for calculating basic and diluted EPU attributable to unitholders (88.87) (68.23) (89.15) (297.27) (319.24)
Weighted average number of units in calculating basic and diluted EPU (No. in 158.00 158.00 61.04 158.00 61.04
Earnings Per Unit (Not annualised for the quarter)
Basic and Diluted (Rupees/unit) (0.56) (0.43) {1.46) (1.88) (5.23)
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F) Statement of Related Party Transactions:
I. List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

a) Entity with control over the Trust
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus

b) Entity with significant influence over the Trust
Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Ultimate holding company of ERAML

1. List of related parties as per Regulation 2(1)(zv) of the InvIT Regulations
a) Parties of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project manager
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager
Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL) - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

b) Promoters of the parties to specified in (a) above

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Promoters of SEPL
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited (w.e.f. 29 March 2023) Promoters of ERAML
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited {upto 28 March 2023) Promoters of ERAML
Axis Bank Limited Promoters of ATSL

c) Directors of the parties specified in (a} above
i) Directors of SEPL
Vijayanand Semletty {w.e.f. 2 August 2023)
Avinash Prabhakar Rao (upto 2 August 2023)
Sushant Sujir Nayak
Tharuvai Venugopal Rangaswami

i) Directors of ERAML
Venkatchalam Ramaswamy
Subahoo Chordia
Sunil Mitra
Prabhakar Panda {upto 1 April 2023)
Ranjita Deo
Shiva Kumar
Bala C Deshpande (appointed w.e.f. 1 April 2023)
Nupur Garg (appointed w.e.f. 23 May 2023)

iii) Key Managerial Personnel of ERAML
Ranjita Deo (Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer)
Vaibhav Doshi (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f. 1 February 2023)
Jalpa Parekh (Company Secretary)

iv) Directors of ATSL
Deepa Rath
Prashant Ramrao Joshi (w.e.f. 16 January 2024)
Sumit Bali (w.e.f. 16 January 2024)
Rajesh Kumar Dahiya (upto 15 January 2024)
Ganesh Sankaran (upto 15 January 2024)

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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1ll. Related party transactions: (Al in INR million, except as stated)
Quarter ended | Quarter ended Quarter Year ended
{Refer note 2) (Refer note 2) ended (Refer note 2)| yaarended
Particulars (Refer note 2)
31-Mar-24 31-Dec-23 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Audited Unaudited Audited Audlted Audited
Issue of units
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus e - # - 9,380.00
Sekura Energy Private Limited B - - - 2,380.00
Axis Bank Limited - - - - 500.00
Issue of NCD
Axis Bank Limited - - = & 3,000.00
Interest income on investment in fixed deposits
Axis Bank Limited 3.49 289 421 1256 843
Investment in fixed deposits
Axis Bank Limited 120.00 10.00 894.91 16171 3955.96
Redemption of fixed deposits
Axis Bank Limited - 10.00 B73.67 52.94 4450.46
Interest expense on NCD
Axis Bank Limited 59.75 60.57 59.25 240.79 79.66
Project Impl ion and
Sekura Energy Private Limited 5.32 4.30 517 20.66 10.53
Shared service cost
Sekura Energy Private Limited 5.90 5.90 13.60 23.60 1883
Unit placement fees
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - - . - 11.09
Arranger fees for NCD facillties
Axis Bank Limited - - - - 8.89
Distribution to unit halders
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 221.48 229.81 116.31 908.10] 116.31
Sekura Energy Private Limited 5831 5831 2951 232,53 29.51
Axis Bank Limited ~ - 3.97 14.12 3.97
Reimbursement of expenses from
Axis Bank Limited - - - 4.05
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus - - - 131 -
Reimbursement of expenses to
Sekura Energy Private Limited 1.26 0.54 15.31 1.98 102.45
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited - - 0.05 B 0.05
Avinash Prabhakar Rac . . 0.07 - 0.07
Investment management fees
! Real Assets N Limited 16.14 16.31 16.00 64.90 24.18
Trustee fees
Axis Trustee Services Limited 0.18 0.18 0.02 0.71 026
IV. Related party balances:
As at Asat As at
31-Mar-24 31-Dec-23 31-Mar-23
Particulars {Receivable/ {Receivable/ | (Receivable/
{payable)} {payabie)} {payahble})] |
rer) 1 G FFFE
Trade payables
Sekura Energy Private Limited (2.25) {2.55) {31.85)
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (5.50) {5.50) {10.49)
Adis Trustee Services Limited . . (0.26)
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited - - (0.05)
Balances with banks in current accounts
Axis Bank Limited 48.92 143.77 31,07
Fixed deposits
Axis Bank Limited 285.00 165.00 176.24
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Axis Bank Limited 0.63 0.10 0.11
Other financial liabilities
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus (59.61) (59.61) (628.93)
Interest accrued but not due an borrowings
Axis Bank Limited (0.66) (61.23) {0.66)
Outstanding NCD
Axis Bank Limited {3,000,00) (3,000.00)]  (3,000.00)
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Details in respect of related party transactions involving acquisition of InvIT assets as required by Para 4.6.6 of Chapter 4 of SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated 06 July 2023 as amended including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder ("SEBI Circulars”) are as
follows:

For the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024:
No acquisition during the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024.

For the year ended 31 March 2023:

Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has acquired Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS')
from Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus (‘EIYP') pursuant to share purchase agreement dated on 1 November 2022 and subsequent closing on 11 November
2022. The Trust issued its units amounting to INR 4,700 million and INR 3,600 million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NRSS respectively.

Summary of valuation report

Particulars DMTCL NRSS
Enterprise value as at 30 June 2022 12,907.00 9,897.00
. Discounted Discounted
Method of valuation Fondt i oE—
Discount rate (WACC) 8.45% 8.24%

Enterprise value as disclosed above are based solely on the fair valuation report dated 18 October 2022 of the independent valuer appointed by the Investment
manager under the InvIT Regulations.

Changes in Accounting policies
There is no change in the Accounting policy of the Group for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024.

Figures for previous periods have been regrouped / reclassified wherever considered necessary.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
(as Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)

\\
Ranjita Deo
Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer
DIN No. : 09609160
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2024
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